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GENERAL 
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LIST OF 
ABBREVIATIONS

ABET
AET
BBBEE
BCEA
BEE 
CBO
CPA

Adult Basic Education and Training 
Adult Education and Training
Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment (Act)
Basic Conditions of Employment Act
Black Economic Empowerment
Community-Based Organisation
Consumer Protection Act

The dti
FET
FoodBev 
SETA 
GAP 
GET
GMO
HACCP
HET
DHET
ICT
IPAP 2
ISOE
IT

Department of Trade and Industry
Further Education and Training 
Food and Beverage Manufacturing  
Sector Education and Training Authority
Good Agricultural Practices
General Education and Training 
Genetically Modified Organism 
Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points 
Higher Education and Training 
Department of Higher Education and Training
Information and Communication Technology
Industrial policy action plan 2010/11 – 2012/13  
Institution of Sectoral or Occupational Excellence
Information Technology

JSE 
LFS
LRA  
MTEF
MTSF
NGO
NLP
NPO
NQF
NSDS
NSF
NVC

OFO
PDI
PIVOTAL

PPPFA
QCTO
SETA
SIC
SMEs
SSP
WSP

Johannesburg Stock Exchange
Labour Force Survey
Labour Relations Act
Medium Term Expenditure Framework 
Medium Term Strategic Framework  
Non Governmental Organisation
Non Levy Paying
Non Profit Organisation
National Qualifications Framework
National Skills Development Strategy
National Skills Fund
New Venture Creation 

Organising Framework for Occupations
Previously Disadvantaged Individual
Professional, Internship, Vocational, Technical, Academic 
Learning Programmes 
Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act
Quality Council for Trades and Occupations
Sector Education and Training Authority
Standard Industrial Classification
Small and Micro Enterprises
Sector Skills Plan 
Workplace Skills Plan 
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MINISTRY OF HIGHER 
EDUCATION AND TRAINING

Dr. Bonginkosi Emmanuel Nzimande
Minister of Higher Education & Training

Mr. Mduduzi Manana
Deputy Minister of Higher Education  
and Training
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CHAIRPERSON’s 
FOREWORD

On behalf of my fellow Board members, I wish to take 

this opportunity to thank the Minister for appointing us to 

serve on the Board from April 2011 – March 2016. We 

are pleased to table our very last Annual Report, which 

includes another unqualified clean audit. I thank the 

Board members and, Chairpersons of sub-committees, 

subcommittee members, for their hard work and for 

standing in a fiduciary relationship to the SETA. The 

Board has carried out their responsibilities with utmost 

care, diligence, honesty and loyalty. I want to thank our 

employees and managers who continued to carry out their 

duties with dedication and honesty, in particular our CFO/

Acting CEO Mrs. Nokuthula Selamolela. My gratitude also 

extends to our stakeholders, the levy paying companies, 

organised employers, organised labour, internal and 

external auditors, for their continued support and 

cooperation during our term of office.

Our Board has consistently and without fear or favour dealt 

with transgressions by staff, including senior managers, 

who undermined our internal financial controls, constitution, 

policies, regulations and legislation. We will continue to 

foster good governance and ethical conduct and further 

the interests of education and training among unemployed 

persons and employees in companies within the Food 

and Beverage Manufacturing Sector. The Annual Report 

covers all the activities of the SETA, targets and goals 

which we have set for ourselves, the challenges and what 

was achieved. We are tabling this report with uncertainty 

regarding the future of the SETA landscape. We are 

passing the baton to the incoming Board, with pride that 

we have indeed run our race and it is their duty to take the 

FoodBev SETA forward, we have laid a solid foundation for 

future work.

Thank you 

Mr. Matsobane Komape 
Chairperson of the Accounting Authority
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4.1 Operations Review 

During this reporting period, the ETQA programmes 

included the development of QCTO aligned qualifications, 

FET capacity building, external moderations, accreditations 

of providers, learning programme approvals, certifications, 

skills programme endorsements and, monitoring and 

evaluation. The Sector Skills Plan (SSP) provided a 

thorough analysis of developments in the sector and sets 

out skills development priorities for a five year period that 

is likely to impact on skills needs. The skills needs and 

priorities identified in the SSP were used as a basis for 

the development of the 2014-15 Strategic and Annual 

Performance Plan for the sector.

The Marketing and Communications Department ensured 

that activities of the SETA were communicated to its 

stakeholders and that there was stakeholder engagement. 

We participated in various career exhibitions and events 

across provinces to provide career guidance. On the 

human resources front, crucial positions that were vacant 

were advertised and filled. The FoodBev SETA Board 

approved a project to upgrade the entire IT infrastructure 

and phase 1 of this project which was the migration of 

the organisation’s Wide Area Network (WAN) to the offsite 

hosting company was completed.

4.2  General financial review   
       of the Organisation

FoodBev SETA received levy income totaling R277m for 

the financial year under review. This represents an 11% 

increase from prior years and can be attributable to general 

salary and employee increases in the sector.  Interest 

received is R23m and this is due to the high cash balance 

in the bank.

Total expenditure on grants was R145m and of this total 

expenditure R56.9m was spent on mandatory grant 

REPORT FROM THE ACTING  
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Mrs. Nokuthula Selamolela
Acting Chief Executive Officer

2014/15 | FoodBev SETA | Annual Report  



For the year ended 31 March 2015    
PAGE 11  

 FoodBev SETA | Annual Report 2014/15  |  FoodBev SETA | Annual Report 2014/15  |  FoodBev SETA | Annual Report 2014/15

Tenders are approved by the 

Accounting Authority.

4.6 Audit report matters 

Audit findings from prior years 

were addressed and those that 

are not addressed are in the 

process of being finalized.

4.7 Outlook/Plans for the 
      future

FoodBev SETA is financially viable 

and has sufficient funding streams 

to implement on its strategic 

plans in the light of the current 

legislation.

4.8 Events after reporting  
      date

Will be reported post reporting 

date 

4.9 Acknowledgment/ 
      Appreciation

I would like to thank all the 

partners and stakeholders that 

supported FoodBev SETA 

in delivering of its Annual 

Performance Plan.  The SETA 

management commits to 

continuously improve its services 

offered to constituencies by 

remaining relevant in terms 

of programme offerings and 

providing value for money.

Mrs. Nokuthula Selamolela
Acting Chief Executive Officer

payments and R88.8m was spent 

on discretionary grant payments 

and project administration costs.  

Discretionary grants are disbursed 

in tranches and subsequent 

tranches are dependent on receipt 

of progress reports or results from 

employers.  Discretionary grant 

payments were low in the current 

year due to the challenges faced 

with the implementation of a new 

ERP system.

FoodBev SETA paid to the 

National Skills fund an amount of 

R76m that was calculated based 

on uncommitted funds.

Most companies approve 

learnerships in the fourth quarter 

which then result in the amounts 

being committed as compared 

to actual payments. This is in line 

with an academic calendar. During 

the year under review, there was 

a Finalisation of collaboration 

agreements with TVET colleges 

with regards to payment of 

bursaries and work readiness for 

programs that were not finalized in 

the previous year. Administration 

expenses have risen with inflation 

and these are controlled through 

monthly variance reporting 

and implementation of cost 

containment measures by the 

SETA.

4.3 Capacity constraints and  
      challenges

Capacity constraints in some of 

the departments within the SETA 

were addressed by filling in vacant 

positions in the last quarter of the 

year and acquiring a high level 

of skill within these units to drive 

development and implementation.  

Other capacity constraints are 

addressed by improving the IT 

infrastructure which has been a 

challenge at the SETA.

4.4 Discontinued activities

There has been no discontinuation 

or planned discontinuation of any 

major part of SETA operations.

4.5 Supply Chain    
      Management (SCM)

Accounting Authority approved 

procedures supporting the SCM 

policy of the organisation. The bid 

committees are in place. During 

the year under review, FoodBev 

SETA awarded the following 

tenders and panels:

•	 Offsite server hosting;

•	 Panel of Moderators and 

Training providers for non-levy 

paying companies; and

•	 Qualification Development 

Facilitator
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STATEMENT  
OF RESPONSIBILITY 

To the best of our knowledge and 

understanding, we confirm the 

following: 

All information and amounts 

disclosed in the annual report is 

consistent with the annual financial 

statements audited by the Auditor-

General.

The annual report is complete, 

accurate and free from any 

omissions.

The annual report has been 

prepared in accordance with the 

guidelines on the annual report as 

issued by National Treasury.

The annual financial statements 

have been prepared in accordance 

with the Generally Recognised 

Accounting Practice (GRAP) 

standards applicable to the 

FoodBev SETA.

The Board is responsible for the 

preparation of the annual financial 

statements and for the judgements 

made in this information.

The Board is responsible for 

establishing and implementing 

a system of internal control that 

has been designed to provide 

reasonable assurance to the 

integrity and reliability of the 

performance information, the 

human resources information and 

the annual financial statements. 

The Auditor-General is engaged to 

express an independent opinion 

on the annual financial statements. 

In our opinion, the annual report 

fairly reflects the operations, the 

performance information, the 

human resources information and 

the financial affairs of the FoodBev 

SETA for the financial year ended 

31 March 2015. 

............................................... 
Mrs. Nokuthula Selamolela
Acting Chief Executive Officer

............................................... 
Mr Matsobane Komape
Chairperson of the Board
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STRATEGIC  
OVERVIEW

VISION 
 
To have sufficient and appropriate knowledge and  
skills available in the Food and Beverages 
Manufacturing Sector in order to contribute to: 

•	 the growth and development of the sector;

•	 a safe, healthy, productive and competitive 

industry;

•	 the promotion of access to quality education and 

training for all to participate in work and life, and

•	 the redress of past inequalities in education and 

training.

MISSION

The stakeholders of the Food and Beverages 
Manufacturing Sector are committed to ensuring that:

•	 relevant and quality learning standards and 

qualifications are available in this sector;

•	 a high quality of learning provision is maintained in 

this sector, and

•	 access to knowledge and skills is improved for all 

in the sector.

2014/15 | FoodBev SETA | Annual Report  
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The FoodBev SETA falls under 

Schedule 3A of the Public Finance 

Management Act No.1 of 1999 (as 

amended).  

The SETA’s mandate is derived 

from the Constitution of the 

Republic of South Africa which gives 

everyone the right to education. 

This constitutional mandate is 

strengthened by the following key 

pieces of legislation which are 

directly applicable to the FoodBev 

SETA:

•	 The Skills Development Act 

No. 97 of 1998 (as amended in 

2008);

•	 The Skills Development Levies 

Act No. 9 of 1999;

•	 The National Qualifications 

Framework Act No. 67 of 2008 

(as amended in August 2010); 

and

•	 The Public Finance 

Management Act No. 1 of 1999 

(as amended) and its related 

National Treasury Regulations 

(as amended). 

7.2 Policy Mandate 
The Medium Term Strategic 

Framework (MTSF) 2009 - 2014:

The Government’s Medium Term 

Strategic Framework (MTSF) for 

the period 2009-2014 informed the 

development of the FoodBev SETA’s 

five-year strategy. It provides a guide 

for planning and resource allocation 

across all spheres of government, 

including the FoodBev SETA as one 

of the 21 public entities charged 

with facilitation and promotion of 

skills development in the Food and 

Beverage Sector. 

7.3 The National Skills 
Development Strategy  
2011/12 - 2015/16

The FoodBev SETA APP’s eight 

programmes are underpinned by 

the National Skills Development 

Strategy (NSDS) III promulgated by 

the Minister of Higher Education and 

Training. Programmes 1 to 8 of the 

FoodBev SETA’s APP are based on 

the eight goals of the NSDS III, as 

listed below: 

•	 Establishing a credible institutional 

mechanism for skills planning;

•	 Increasing access to 

occupationally-directed 

programmes;

•	 Promoting the growth of a public 

FET system that is responsive to 

sector, local, regional and national 

skills needs and priorities;

•	 Addressing the low level of youth 

and adult language and numeracy 

skills to enable  additional training;

•	 Encouraging better use 

of workplace-based skills 

development;

•	 Encouraging and supporting 

co-operatives, small enterprises, 

worker-initiated programmes;

•	 Non-Governmental Organisations 

(NGOs) and community training 

initiatives

•	 Increasing public sector capacity 

for improved service delivery 

and supporting the building of a 

developmental state; and

•	 Building career and vocational 

guidance.

LEGISLATIVE AND  
OTHER MANDATES 
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ORGANISATIONAL  
STRUCTURE

CFO  

The structure below depicts the Executive and Senior Management:

Accounting Authority

CEO

Quality Assurance  
Manager  

Finance Manager  Corporate Services  
Manager 

Information Technology 
Manager 

Skills Planning  
Manager  
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1. Auditor General’s Report:  
    Predetermined Objectives

The Auditor General South Africa  
currently performs the necessary 
audit procedures on the 
performance information to provide 
reasonable assurance in the form of 
an audit conclusion. This is reported 
under Predetermined Objectives 
in the Report on other legal and 
Regulatory requirements section of 
the Auditor’s report.

2. Situational Analysis

2.1 Service Delivery 
Environment: Food and 
Beverages Manufacturing 
Sector:
 
•	 Opportunities for participation 

of small, medium and micro-
enterprises in niche markets 
exist, providing opportunities for 
sector growth. Manufacturing 
in the sector is not always 
scale-dependent and small 
operations may be as 
economically efficient as larger 
plants;

•	 The role of technology becomes 
more important to maximize 
efficiencies;

•	 Gradual improvement in 
productivity levels has been 
experienced over the past 
10 years. Due to global 
competitiveness, this needs to 
continuously improve;

•	 Production in certain sub-
sectors is threatened by 
imports, (dairy industry, meat 
industry), and they cannot 

compete in the export market.
•	 The sector is volume, cost and 

technology driven.  Skills are 
frequently not aligned to new 
technologies;

•	 The sector is adopting high 
technological innovations that 
require higher skilled personnel;

•	 The occupational groups from 
managers to professionals are 
dominated by white people.   
The groups from technicians 
to elementary workers are 
dominated by previously 
disadvantaged individuals; 

•	 Across all occupations, females 
constitutes a lower proportion 
of the workforce, even in 
occupations that are not 
“traditionally male” positions, 
examples being sales workers, 
clerical and administrative 
workers and professionals;

•	 An increased awareness of 
environmental sustainability 
requires “up-skilling” of the 
workforce and inclusion of 
new content in the curricula of 
learning programmes;

•	 Promulgation of various 
pieces of legislation such as 
the Consumer Protection Act 
and the Labelling Act require 
training at various levels in 
companies in the sector, and 
will need to be included in 
curricula in future;

•	 The expected improved 
economic condition of the 
global economy could see the 
increased demand for niche 
food products of which the 
country has several; and

•	 The alignment of the B-BBEE 

Act and its Codes of Good 
Practice vis-à-vis the PPPFA 
could see the institutionalisation 
of the B-BBEE Act and its 
Codes of Good Practice, 
companies to transform the 
historical divide attributed to 
apartheid and invest in skills 
development and employment 
equity not only as a compliance 
measure, but as a form of good 
corporate governance and 
good corporate citizenship.

An estimated 50 000 employees 
will be required by the sector over 
the next year due to replacement 
demand and expected sector 
growth.  
 
SSP Demand:
•	 Of these, more than 16 000 

people will be required in 
occupations identified as 
scarce.  

•	 The match between demand 
and supply of skills in the food 
and beverage manufacturing 
sector requires a better fit.  The 
demand issues isolated are:

•	 Higher levels of education 
and work experience required     
(NQF levels 5 and higher) 

•	 The need for woman 
management development 
across all managerial levels;

•	 The need for increased artisan 
development;

•	 Up-skilling of operators;
•	 Adult education to provide 

improved access to higher 
levels of learning.

•	 Industry to take a proactive 
role in socio-economic 
transformation in mitigating the 

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS
PERFORMANCE
INFORMATION

PART B
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historic divides that impact skills 
development, and employment 
equity; and

•	 Stakeholder management 
with industry and educational 
institutions aiding in curriculum 
development that is geared 
to specialisation rather than 
generalisation. 

The supply issues identified are: 
•	 Through proper career 

guidance, enable the education 
sector to inculcate a culture 
among students and learners 
on the importance of earning 
the highest level of qualifications 
within their intellectual ability 
and to develop themselves for 
careers where employment 
opportunities exist;

•	 Influence increased collaboration 
with industry on appropriate 
technology and innovation that 
should be included in curricula; 

•	 Ensure the adoption and 
education of numeracy and 
literacy skills from primary and 
secondary education as they 
serve as the preamble to access 
entry and function within a highly 
skilled environment;

•	 Providing workplace 
experience to young people 
with appropriate academic 
qualifications;

•	 Continue with management 
development;

•	 Improving the skills at operator 
level;

•	 Continuing with artisan 
development; and

•	 Support adult education to 
provide access to higher 
qualification levels 
 

2.2 Organisational    
      Environment

The SETA Board is fully functional 
and key committees, such as the 
EXCO, Audit and Risk Committee, 
Governance and Strategy and 
Finance and Remuneration 
Committees have been established 
and are functional. The Chamber 
committees have been established 
and are led by Chairpersons who 
are members of the Accounting 
Authority. The FoodBev SETA 
organisational structure has been 
capacitated to ensure adequacy in 
supporting the achievement of NSDS 
targets as outlined in the business 
values above. The organogram on 
page 18 illustrates the management 
structure of FoodBev SETA and the 
function for each department in line 
with the objectives outlined above.

Research Capacity of the SETA
 The SETA plans to forge 
partnerships with the research 
unit of respective universities 
working closely with the Food and 
Beverages manufacturing sector. 
In this partnership, the universities 
will get more exposure in the 
sector by working closely with the 
companies, benefit more with regard 
to registered research students 
accessing bursary grants for 
research and innovation. The sector 
will benefit in terms of scientific 
research methodology applied as 
well as the transfer of skills in the 
SETA and the sector as a whole. 

The intention is to increase research 
capacity at the SETA to have a 
stronger focus on impact research, 
and to increase internal capacity 
on labour market analysis. This will 
be possible because of the more 
“focused” approach of NSDS III in 
terms of the number of indicators 
to address research capacity in the 
sector.

2.3 Key policy developments  
      and legislative changes

Skills Development Act 
The functions of the FoodBev SETA are 
governed by the Skills Development Act:

a)  Develop a Sector Skills  
Plan within the framework of the national 
skills development strategy;
b) Implement its sector skills plan 
c) Promote learning programme 
d) Collect and disburse the skills 
development levies in the Food and 
Beverage Sector;
 
SETA GRANT REGULATIONS- 
GOVERNMENT GAZETTE NO. 
35940 OF 15 July 2013

The SETA Grant Regulations was 
promulgated in order to:
•	 Regulate the proportion of funds 

available for skills development that 
is spent on administration; 

•	 Provide for SETAs to contribute to 
the cost of the work of the Quality 
Council for Trades and Occupations 
(QCTO); 

•	 Discourage the accumulation of 
surpluses and the carry-over of 
unspent funds at  the end of each 
financial year; 

•	  Improve the quantity and quality of 
labour market information received 
by SETAs in the form of Workplace 
Skills Plans (WSP) and the Annual 
Training Reports (ATR) and Pivotal 
Training Reports (PTR), to inform 
planning; 

•	 Promote National Qualification 
Framework (NQF) registered 
and quality assured PIVOTAL 
programmes that address priority 
scarce and critical skills needs 
identified in Sector Skills Plans 
(SSP); and

•	 Create a framework within which 
expanded use is made of public 
education and training providers for 
the provision of skills development 
programmes.
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No.

8.1

8.2

8.3

Strategic objective

Sector Skills 

needs researched, 

documented and 

communicated 

Career Guidance 

facilitated  and 

distributed

Skills Development 

Support employees 

and pre- employed 

persons

Output 

SSP to be 

submitted and 

approved by 

DHE; companies 

train according 

to scarce skills 

identified 

Guide distributed 

Learnership 

Employed  People

Learnership 

Unemployed  

People

Unit Standard 

Skills Programme 

AET

Actual 

achievement

2013/14

Planned 

Target

2014/15

Actual 

Achievement

2014/15

Deviation from  

planned target 

to actual 

achievement for 

2014 / 2015

Comments

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Not achieved, due 

to  non-submission 

of relevant supporting 

documents

Achieved

Not achieved;  

Learners and 

companies did not 

show  an interest

PERFORMANCE  
INFORMATION PER OBJECTIVE

-

-

-

-12

-

-270

1

5,500

1,200

1,188

700

330

1

5,500

1,200

1,200

700

600

1

5,234

1,000

800

500

200
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8.4

8.5

Skills 

Development 

Support 

employees and 

pre- employed 

persons

Skills 

Development 

Support 

employees and 

pre- employed 

persons

Apprentice 

section 13

Apprentice 

section 28

Internship/WIL

TVET Bursary 

Rural 

FET Placement

Work Readiness 

TVET 

Bursaries –  

pre-employed

Bursaries – 

employed 

(Uncapped)

Employed 

Bursaries (MDP)

110

20

521

100

-

-

200

153

85

50

20

350

350

750

150

400

200

85

50

20

302

173

749

100

400

178

51

-

-

-48

-177

-1

-50

-

-22 

-34

Achieved

Achieved

Not achieved, due to  

non-submission of 

relevant supporting 

documents

Not achieved, due to  

non-submission of 

relevant supporting 

documents

Not Achieved

Not achieved, due to  

non-submission of 

relevant supporting 

documents

Achieved

Not achieved, due to 

non-submission of 

relevant supporting 

documents

Not achieved, due to 

non-submission of 

relevant supporting 

documents

No. Strategic objective Output Actual 

achievement

2013/14

Planned 

Target

2014/15

Actual 

Achievement

2014/15

Deviation from  

planned target 

to actual 

achievement for 

2014 / 2015

Comments

Performance information per objective continued 
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8.6

8.7

8.8

Support to 

National 

Imperatives 

Collaboration with 

FET and HET 

Institutions 

regarding the 

curriculum 

Projects that build 

capacity of FET/

HET 

FET:  

SETA Presence

The SETA to 

open offices at 

FET Colleges in 

Western Cape

Achieved. The SETA 

deviated from the 

Western Cape due to 

a directive from the 

DHET Minister  to  

open offices in 

Gauteng (Ekurhuleni 

West College) and  

Free State ( Maluti 

TVET)

SME,NGO’s, 

CBO’s, Co-ops, 

NLPEs  and 

Trade Unions

Qualification 

registered with 

QCTO ready 

for FET/HET 

implementation

Work  exposure 

for  FET/HET 

College lecturers

Company 

employees to 

lecture at FET 

Colleges

205

0

0

0

0

300

3

10

5

2

327

0

0

0

2

+27

-3

-10

-5

-

Achieved

Currently being 

developed 

Project documents 

revised and new 

MOU designed for 

re-submission

Project documents 

revised and new 

MOU designed for 

re-submission

No. Strategic objective Output Actual 

achievement

2013/14

Planned 

Target

2014/15

Actual 

Achievement

2014/15

Deviation from  

planned target 

to actual 

achievement for 

2014 / 2015

Comments

Performance information per objective continued 
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1.1   OVERVIEW  OF THE  
        DEPARTMENT:

The skills planning unit at the 

FoodBev SETA is the largest unit 

spanning research, mandatory and 

discretionary grants and learning 

programmes delivery. 

1.2   KEY INDICATORS OF THE  
        DEPARTMENT

•	 Research which determines 

the skills needs of the FoodBev 

SETA;

•	 Receipt and approval  of 

mandatory grant applications;

•	 Organisation registration ;

•	 Inter SETA transfer;

•	 SDF capacitation;

•	 Receipt and approval of 

discretionary grant applications; 

and

•	 Learning programme delivery 

covering learnerships, 

apprenticeships, adult education 

and training, skills programmes, 

bursaries, work experience and 

internships. 

1.3   DELIVERY ON NSDS III  
        STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

1.3.1  
Sector Skills Plan
Section 10 (1) of the Skills 

Development Act of 1998 as 

amended requires that all Sector 

Education and Training Authorities 

develop a Sector Skills Plan (SSP) in 

accordance with the current National 

Skills Development Strategy. The 

FoodBev SETA compiled a five year 

SSP covering 2011-2016 which has 

been updated annually.  

The Sector Skills Plan provides a 

thorough analysis of developments 

in the sector and sets out skills 

development priorities for a five year 

period that is likely to impact on skills 

needs. The SSP is updated annually 

to accommodate any changes that 

might occur within the sector which 

impacts on skills planning and the 

associated allocation of resources to 

address the identified skills needs. 

•	 The skills needs and priorities 

identified in the SSP were used 

as a basis for the development 

of the 2014-15 Strategic and 

Annual Performance Plan for the 

sector.  These two documents 

specify skills development 

targets and supporting budget 

for the achievement of the 

targets against the Service Level 

Agreement signed between the 

Department of Higher Education 

and Training and the FoodBev 

SETA.

In line with all prescripts governing the 

submission of SSPs, theFoodBev  

SETA submitted the annual update of 

the Sector Skills Plan (SSP) 2014/15 

on 15 November 2014. 

1.3.2  
Levy paying employers
Table 1 below depicts that after the 

submission of Mandatory applications 

for the 2014/15 financial year, 602 

companies were approved and 

categorized as being eligible for 

mandatory grants. The target of 595 

set for 2014/15 was achieved and 

exceeded.

1.  SKILLS PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SKILLS PLANNING
REPORT: 
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 Table 1:  Mandatory Grant applications status: 2014 / 2015

 Table 2:  Mandatory Grant applications status: 2014 / 2015

Submission of WSP/ATR by levy paying companies

Organisation size

Large (150+)

Medium (50–149)

Small (1–49)

Total

Target 2014/2015

175

170

250

595

Actual Achieved Deviation Comments 

163

172

271

606 11

-12

2

21

Not achieved, due 
to merging of SDL 
numbers 

Not achieved, due 
to merging of SDL 
numbers

Achieved.  More 
companies reached 
the threshold and 
became the levy 
paying companies.

Deviation from the planned target  

to actual achievement 2014/15

Submission of Trade unions and NGO, CBO, NLPE, SME companies

Organisation 

Trade Unions

SME,NGO/CBO

TOTAL

Target 2014/2015

100

200

300

Actual Achieved Deviation

127

200

327

+27

-

Deviation from the planned target to 

actual achievement 2014/15

1.3.3   
Support to Small levy 
paying and non-levy paying 
organisations
FoodBev has entered into 

partnership with Gauteng City 

Region Academy to implement 

training for 200 unemployed 

youth, women who own small 

business and people with disability. 

In the current financial year 204 

participated in skills development 

and the target was achieved.

1.3.4  
Trade Union 
The target that was set for Trade 

Union member capacitation was 

100 with 127 achieved.

Table 2 below depicts that after 

the submission of Trade Union 

and SME, NGO, CBO, NLPE for 

the 2014/15 financial year, 327 

companies were approved and 

categorized as being eligible for 

Non-Levy Paying companies and 

Trade Unions. The target of 300 

set for 2014/15 was achieved and 

exceeded. 
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1.4.1  
Young people on internships 
and work experience
An internship is a training 

intervention required to qualify 

for a profession. It provides the 

opportunities to career exposure in 

different fields of work and follows 

a specified number of academic 

credits or classroom years.  

Students in the Food and Beverage 

Sector are further given an 

opportunity to gain the appropriate 

work experience in order to become 

more employable in their chosen 

fields, although, placement of these 

students in the Sector remains as a 

huge challenge. 

The target set for Internships and 

work experience was 350 and the 

actual achievement against the 

target was 304. The target was not 

achieved. Some of these students 

were further employed or absorbed 

into the labour market with an 

option to further their studies within 

the Sector. 

1.4.2   
TVET Graduate Placements
Graduate placement is a training 

intervention required by the 

TVET College students who have 

achieved the N6 qualification and 

need to do practical training for 

the duration of 18 months in the 

FoodBev Manufacturing Industry 

Sector in order to be awarded a 

Diploma. Students in the sector 

are given opportunities to gain 

knowledge and work experience to 

be employable or be self-employed.  

Stakeholders have taken up TVET 

College students in the workplace 

and offered them the type of 

training required by industry. 

FoodBev SETA placed 749 TVET 

graduates in various work places, 

through this programme. A number 

of students are expected to find 

employment after completing their 

training and others to proceed by 

furthering their studies with the aid 

of bursaries. 

Number of TVET Colleges 

participated through the GCRA 

and FoodBev SETA MoU were:

•	 Capricorn TVET College;

•	 Taletso TVET College;

•	 Tshwane North TVET College;

•	 Uzmgungundlovu TVET 

College;

•	 Vuselela TVET College; and

•	 WestCol TVET College

1.4.3  
Learnership for Employed and 
Unemployed learners
The grant funding window was 

opened to the sector and 51 

companies applied for grants 

and received funding. More than 

75% of discretionary grants 

were allocated to support the 

achievement of full qualifications. A 

total of 1,200 employees received 

grants and 1,188 un-employed 

persons enrolled in learnership 

programmes.  This unemployed 

learnership target was not 

achieved.

1.4.4 
Skills Programmes
A skills programme entails 

an occupationally directed 

programme which is presented by 

an accredited provider and when 

completed, will constitute credits 

towards a qualification registered 

in the National Qualifications 

Framework.

Companies train employees for 

the set of skills required to enable 

them to perform certain tasks and 

ensure individual competency. The 

target of 700 was achieved.

1.4.5   
Adult Education and Training 
For the past 7 years the sector 

has invested substantially in the 

development of basic numeracy 

and literacy skills of employees 

in the sector. The target for AET 

was 600, the actual achievement 

against the target with 330 

that have been trained. Various 

companies applied for grants 

which were approved, however 

learners showed a disinterest in 

being trained. 

1.4.6   
Unemployed Bursaries
The target of 400 bursaries has 

been met, with students mainly 

studying in various categories such 

as Agriculture & Environmental 

Sciences, Engineering, Science 

& Technology, Human Sciences 

Management, Finance & 

Economics and Food Science, 

Biotechnology & Chemistry.  

Students have been studying 

at several higher institutions 

throughout the country.

1.4   SKILLS DEVELOPMENT SUPPORT: EMPLOYED AND UNEMPLOYED
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1.4.7   
Employed Bursaries
Bursaries for employees assist 

industry to upskill their workers 

and provide for relevant updated 

knowledge required in order to be 

competitive in the global economy. 

The target of 285 has not been 

achieved and 231 employees have 

been awarded bursaries. 

Several learning institutions 

were involved in offering the 

qualifications listed below: 

•	 Management Development 

Programmes;

•	 Finance, accounting, auditing, 

business management;

•	 Marketing;

•	 Food Science and 

Biotechnology;

•	 Supply chain;

•	 Quality Management; and

•	 Milling.

1.4.8  
Artisan Development
The training of artisans remains 

a national priority. A national 

artisan development programme 

including all components of artisan 

development, driven by social 

partners is a critical need for the 

country. The Ministry has declared 

the period from 2014 to 2024 

as the Decade of the Artisan. In 

areas of work such as artisan 

trades, apprenticeships have 

traditionally been the pathways to 

qualifications. The apprenticeship 

system has been allowed to 

deteriorate since the mid-1980s, 

resulting in a shortage of mid-level 

skills. Re-establishing a good 

artisan training system has become 

an urgent priority. The FoodBev 

SETA has committed itself to the 

development of contracted and 

non-contracted persons for this 

financial year. A target was been 

set to assist with funding for 70 

artisans which has been achieved.  

1.4.9  
Training needs by Employers
The companies as part of training 

their employees identified the 

following training interventions 

although they might not form 

part of the sector scarce skills list 

but are a scarce skill within the 

organisation:

•	 Leadership Training;

•	 HR Strategic Planning;

•	 MBA;

•	 Safety Management;

•	 Business Management;

•	 CIMA;

•	 Engineering;

•	 B Tech;

•	 B Com Human Resources;

•	 B Com Transport;

•	 Mentoring and Coaching;

•	 Internal Audit;

•	 Computer Literacy;

•	 Packaging Management;

•	 Operations Management; and

•	 Supply Chain Management.

1.5   SPECIAL PROJECTS

1.5.1  
Work Readiness 
The programme supports the 

students on how to access 

employment and is aimed to 

equip unemployed persons with 

workplace skills, the maximum 

training period being six 

months. The target set for work 

readiness was 150 and the actual 

achievement against the target 

was 100.  Maluti College assisted 

with placing these students in 

workplaces.

1.5.2  
National Student Financial  
Aid Scheme (NSFAS)
The Government’s key mechanism 

for assisting poor students to 

access higher education is the 

National Student Financial Aid 

Scheme. The need for financial 

aid is far greater than the available 

resources from the fiscus, with 

the result that academically and 

financially eligible students cannot 

access further education or drop 

out due to the lack of adequate 

funding. The Ministerial Committee 

responsible for the NSFAS review 

indicated that NSFAS required 

three times its budget to meet 

the demand for financial aid from 

qualifying applicants.

SETA’s were approached by the 

Department of Higher Education 

and Training to assist with the 

provision of bursaries to students 

who are studying Food and 

Beverages related fields that would 

address the skills needed within 

the Food and Beverages Sector.

An amount of R10 000 000 (ten 

million Rand) was allocated to 

NSFAS by the FoodBev SETA and 

a Memorandum of Understanding 

with NSFAS was signed to this 

effect. This amount assisted at 

least 150 qualifying students with 

their tuition, accommodation and 

book allowance.

Subject to the availability FoodBev 

SETA may in subsequent financial 

years, provide funding for qualifying 

students.
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1.5.3  
Rural Bursaries
FoodBev SETA supported rural 

disadvantaged students and few 

urban students who were registered 

The DHET announced in May 

2012 that SETAs are required to 

establish a network within public 

TVET  Colleges. This network 

comprises of the establishment 

of SETA offices, and the following 

two Colleges were allocated to the 

FoodBev SETA:

1.6.1  
Ekurhuleni West College
This College is situated in 

the Ekurhuleni Metropolitan 

Municipality in Gauteng. Ekurhuleni 

West Colleges (EWC) operated 

within a broad band and diverse 

from N1-N3 qualifications towards 

obtaining their N6 qualifications. 

The target was set at 350 but the 

actual achievement against the 

target was 173. 

communities and comprises of the 

following six campuses: Alberton, 

Boksburg, Germiston, Kathorus, 

(in Katlehong / Vosloorus/Thokoza) 

Kempton (in Kempton Park) and 

Tembisa.

Industrial areas that are located 

within this area are:

Alrode, Germiston, Wadeville, 

Elandsfontein, Knights, Delamar, 

Jet Park, Isando and Chloorkop. 

Ekurhuleni has been identified 

as a core focus area for future 

economic development in the 

Gauteng Province.

TVET Colleges that participated are:

•	 Capricorn TVET College;

•	 Taletso TVET College;

•	 Umgungundlovu TVET College; and 

•	 Vuselela TVET College.

1.6.2   
Maluti College
Maluti College has eight campuses: 

Bethlehem and Bonamelo in 

Bethlehem, Harrismith, Itemoheleng, 

Phutaditjaba, Kwetlisong in Riverside, 

Sefikeng in Tsheseng Village and 

Lerela Tshepe in Tseki Village.  The 

main economic activities in these 

areas are agriculture – mainly maize 

and wheat – and tourism.

Memorandums of Understanding 

were signed with both Colleges 

above and sector liaison interns were 

appointed. This target was achieved.

1.6   OPENING OF OFFICES AT TVET INSTITUTIONS
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Accredited Training Providers 2014/2015

2. OVERVIEW

The accreditation of a training 

provider is a process that ensures 

that the quality of training is 

maintained to ensure fitness for 

a purpose and good value for 

money. Below is the list of newly 

accredited training providers who 

have joined the FoodBev SETA as 

Primary Focus Providers.

•	 Aspirata Auditing testing  

 and certification

•	 Bidvest Bakery Solutions

•	 Competence    

Performance  

 Consulting cc

•	 Wine Training South   

Africa

•	 Dalamaro Business   

Consultants cc.

•	 Rudolph-Short   

 Consultancy cc

•	 Alabaster Training Centre  

 (Pty) LTD

 

The FoodBev SETA through 

Memorandums of Understanding 

with other SETAs assists Non-

Primary Focus training providers 

with Learning programme 

Approvals. This enables providers 

that already have accreditation with 

other SETAs the opportunity to 

offer FoodBev SETA programmes. 

During this year the FoodBev 

SETA has assisted the following 

providers with their extension of 

scope.

•	 Lightbrary Development  

 Solutions Cc.

•	 Botswelelo Skill and  

 Development

•	 Shoprite Checkers (Pty)  

 Ltd

The ETQA team is committed to implementing its programmes that contributes to the skills development landscape as 

per the National Skills Development Strategy III and Skills Development Act.  The programmes includes the  

development of QCTO aligned qualifications, FET capacity building, external moderations, accreditation of providers, 

learning programme approvals, certifications, skills programme endorsements and, monitoring and evaluation.

2.1   ACCREDITATION OF SKILLS DEVELOPMENT PROVIDERS 
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2.4   QCTO AUDIT RESULTS

From October 2013 FoodBev 

SETA has undergone audits 

by QCTO officials after a self-

The FoodBev SETA ETQA has 

been given QDP status to develop 

four qualifications for the sector. 

The curriculum of one qualification 

(Dairyman) has been developed to 

The ETQA has vetted the MOU for 

the lecturer capacity building for 

evaluation report was submitted. 

They continue to visit FoodBev 

SETA weekly to advise ETQA and 

be submitted to Quality Council for 

Trades and Occupations (QCTO). 

Two QCTO registered QDFs have 

been appointed to complete the 

re-packaging of the Dairyman 

the project. The following companies 

and TVET colleges have since signed 

review evidence submitted in the 

self-evaluation report. 

qualification for re-submission and 

for the development and registration 

of the other three (Confectioner 

Baker, Wine Maker and Process 

Machine Operator) with QCTO. 

it. Freddy Hirsch, Tshwane North 

College, and Bidvest Baking.

2.5   NEW QUALIFICATION DEVELOPMENT STATUS 

2.6   LECTURER CAPACITY BUILDING

Any training provider applying 

for accreditation should have 

adequate training material, 

facilities, tools and equipment 

at a specified training venue to 

be used to present the training.  

This criteria is used to ensure 

the training provider has the 

capacity to develop training and 

assessment material for the 

qualification applying for. The 

FoodBev SETA does not develop 

material for qualifications but does 

have generic material available that 

must be reviewed by the training 

provider to ensure it meets all the 

requirements of the unit standard 

before use.

2.3  DEVELOPMENT OF LEARNING MATERIALS FOR THE SECTOR 

The registration of assessors and 

moderators is a means of ensuring 

that whoever assesses learner 

competence across all fields and at 

all NQF levels, meets a consistent 

set of criteria set by SAQA.  This 

will ensure that all NQF registered 

standards and qualifications 

assessments are fair, valid, and 

reliable.

FoodBev SETA, as an ETQA 

does not award accreditation to 

providers of education and training 

and/or assessment if, after the 

agreed period, they still do not use 

registered assessors to conduct 

the assessment of learners.

The register of assessors and 

moderators that FoodBev 

SETA maintains consists of 

assessors and moderators who 

have demonstrated the applied 

competence to assess and 

moderate learner’s summative 

assessment that culminates in 

certification. The rationale for 

such a register of assessors and 

moderators is to ensure that 

moderations and assessments 

in the NQF system are credible 

and maintain fairness, validity 

and reliability. The registration 

of assessors and moderators 

is critical to the success of any 

accredited learning programme. 

The ETQA have managed to 

register 77 internal assessors 

and 17 internal moderators for 

2014/2015.

2.2  REGISTRATION OF ASSESSORS AND MODERATORS
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FoodBev SETA ETQA has an 

approved Monitoring and Evaluation 

(M&E) policy which is used to 

guide monitoring interventions. A 

Monitoring and Evaluation Strategy 

that gives direction to the way 

monitoring of all FoodBev SETA 

funded projects will be conducted 

has been drafted to enhance day 

to day monitoring and evaluation 

processes. Work readiness visits as 

well as desktop evaluations have 

been conducted to address new 

enrolments on learnerships as 

well as learners who are currently 

on learning programmes to avoid 

learners getting behind schedule. 

Communication between FoodBev 

SETA, the employers and training 

providers regarding learners on 

learning programmes is done 

continuously.  

Monthly external moderation 

activities that help to verify training 

compliance and progress are 

an added method of monitoring 

and evaluation. This function has 

been enhanced by increasing the 

number of external moderators 

from just six (6) to about 27 to 

accelerate site visit and support 

training interventions in order to 

produce high quality graduates.

2.7   IMPROVING OF MONITORING AND EVALUATION
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Corporate Service’s responsibility 

is the development and 

implementation of the FoodBev 

SETA’s corporate strategy, policies 

and procedures. The department 

seeks to: 
•	 Expedite and facilitate the 

delivery of all HR activities;

•	 Ensure all corporate policies  

and procedures are aligned to 

the FoodBev SETA mandate;

•	 Ensure adequate capacity in 

the form of skills and human 

assets; and

•	 Promote effective 

communication with all 

relevant stakeholders.

3.1   Marketing and     

        Communications 

Marketing and Communications 

ensure that operations and activities 

of the SETA are communicated to its 

stakeholders.  

The FoodBev SETA was involved in 

the following activitoes: 

•	 Career exhibitions;

•	 across most provinces, the 

career guidance target of 5 500 

was reached;

•	 Eight (8) Capacity building 

workshops were conducted in 

Cape Town, Port Elizabeth, East 

London, Durban and Gauteng;

•	 Pro-active communication was 

sent to stakeholders on a regular 

basis informing them of the 

activities of the SETA;

•	 South African commemorative 

days and events, these included 

the Nelson Mandela Day, 

Women’s day, Heritage Day and 

World Aids Day; and

•	 The AGM was held in Gauteng 

on 12 March 2015.

The 2013/14 Annual Report, Annual 

Performance Plan and Sector Skills 

Plan were produced and these  

documents were tabled in Parliament 

by the required deadline date.

3. CORPORATE SERVICES REPORT:

3. OVERVIEW OF THE DEPARTMENT
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Hombisa Caleni 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
DEPARTMENT

4. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Information technology enables 

FoodBev SETA to deliver on its 

mandate, it is an integral part of any 

organisation’s business practices.  

FoodBev SETA is committed to 

ensuring that we keep abreast of the 

changes and technology available to 

improve service delivery.

 

The implementation of the 

Management Information System 

is in its final stages and all system 

modules have been deployed and 

are currently being utilised. The 

major challenge with regards to the 

finalisation of the implementation 

of the system is the reliability of the 

historic data from the old system. 

FoodBev SETA Board approved 

a project to upgrade the entire 

IT infrastructure and phase 1 of 

this project which is the migration 

of the organisation’s Wide Area 

Network (WAN) to the offsite 

hosting company has been 

completed. Phase 2, which is the 

upgrade of the Local Area Network 

(LAN) and migration of data to 

the offsite hosting datacentre 

commenced towards the end of 

the financial year. 

The infrastructure upgrade project 

also encompasses a new Voice 

Over IP telephone system that will 

improve communication between 

the SETA and its stakeholders.

IT security remains of paramount 

importance and steps have been 

taken to improve and protect data 

and information, among few  

interventions that have been made 

is the implementation of the IT 

security policy and installation 

of firewalls, intrusion prevention 

system, disaster recovery plan 

and antivirus software. The IT 

department performs a vigilant 

management and monitoring of all 

IT systems in order to mitigate the 

risk of cyber-attack. 
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1. Mogopodi Pule  2. Penny Zuma  3. Fadzai Dhlamini  4. Katlego Sehlapelo 

 5. Tsakani Maluleka 6. Tonia Masemola  7. Hendrica Monyedi  8. Mzwamadoda Ntshoko

FINANCE  
DEPARTMENT 

1

2

3
4 5

6
7
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5. FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

5.1   ADMINISTRATION INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

FoodBev SETA has contained administration expenditure well within the allocated 10% revenue allowed for this 

expenditure.

5.2   INCOME

Skills development revenue 

increased by 11% to R277m 

from last year’s (R249m. Last 

year’s increase was (13%) 

higher than the - 2013/14 

financial year). This is mainly 

attributable to increase in 

salaries in the sector as 

well as bonuses paid. Skills 

development income was 13% 

higher than budget for the 

2015 financial year.

The FoodBev SETA earned 

interest income of R23m in 2015, 

which is high as a result of the 

cash reserves of R411m. Funds 

committed for discretionary skills 

development projects and other 

5.3   INTEREST INCOME AND CASH RESERVES

projects committed by Board 

are R378m. FoodBev SETA will 

request DHET to retain the balance 

of the uncommitted funds that are 

however required to implement 

projects and funds allocated to 

bursaries for students. Surplus 

funds are held by the Corporation 

for Public Deposits (CPD) and all 

interest earned on these funds 

is utilised for discretionary grant 

funding.
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The 2014/15 financial results 

show a surplus of R60m, 22% 

decrease in the overall surplus for 

the year from last year R78m. The 

surpluses are derived mainly from:

•	 New Grant Regulation 

that was effective from 

1 April 2013 increased 

the Discretionary income 

allocation to 49.5% of total 

levy income compared to 20% 

of the prior period. The funds 

available for discretionary 

grant funding in 2014/15 were 

R227m compared to R219m 

in 2013/14. 

The FoodBev SETA’s 

administration expenditure for 

the 2014/15 financial year was 

R28m and 14% lower than 

budgeted amount of R31m, 

resulting in a surplus from 

administration of R3m. Of the total 

expenditure, R139m was spent 

as grant disbursements, R57m on 

Mandatory grant payments (2014-

R67m) and R82m for discretionary 

projects (2014-R69m).

5.4   EXPENDITURE

In the current financial year under 

review, some programs were 

terminated. This was mainly due 

to employers not taking up the 

allocated funding, or an under-

subscription to our Expression of 

Interest.  

The FoodBev SETA continues 

to ensure the maximum use 

of discretionary grant reserves 

by committing these funds to 

focused discretionary projects. 

Discretionary grant funding is only 

disturbed after strict conditions of 

funding are met. This also results 

in de-commitments as some 

employers are not able to fully 

meet the conditions of funding.

The FoodBev SETA continues 

to ensure the maximum use 

of discretionary grant reserves 

by committing these funds to 

focused discretionary projects. 

Discretionary grant funding is only 

disturbed after strict conditions of 

funding are met. This also results 

in de-commitments as some 

employers are not able to fully meet 

the conditions of funding.

5.5   COMMITMENTS

The FoodBev SETA had 

discretionary reserves of R362m 

(2013-R304m) as at 31 March  

2015, of which R194.214m 

(2014-R135m), has been committed 

to the funding of discretionary 

projects at year-end. The balance 

represent projects approved but 

not contracted that will be included in 

the business case for approval by the 

Department. 

5.6    ACCUMULATED RESERVES AND BANK BALANCES
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All FoodBev SETA policies and 

procedures are designed and 

approved to be in line with 

In the extension of its annual 

business plan the FoodBev SETA 

remained committed to sound 

financial management, good 

governance and compliance 

with the PFMA and Treasury 

Regulations. The annual business 

is developed from an extensive 

Generally Recognised Accounting 

Practice (GRAP), the PFMA and 

Treasury Regulations. Finance 

budgeting process. The finance 

division strives to maintain good 

budgetary control over the efficient 

use of funds.

Quarterly management accounts 

are reported to Finance and 

Remuneration committee and 

policies are reviewed every three 

years not unless there is a change 

in legislation.

Audit and Risk Committee. In 

addition, Quarterly Financial reports 

are submitted to National Treasury 

and the Department of Higher 

Education and Training.

5.7 FINANCIAL POLICIES

5.8 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

There is a Supply Chain 

Management unit within the 

Finance Division as required by 

the Treasury Regulations, and it is 

headed by the Finance Manager. 

The division operates in line with 

the Supply Chain Management 

Framework, Treasury Regulations 

and FoodBev SETA policies, to 

ensure fair, equitable, transparent, 

competitive and cost effective 

procurement of goods and services. 

During the 2014/15 financial year 

the FoodBev SETA awarded 

tenders for procurement of the 

following goods and services:

•	 IT systems upgrade and server 

offsite hosting services

•	 External Moderators for 

learnerships and apprenticeship   

programmes

•	 QCTO Qualification 

Development

5.9 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
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1.   Introduction
Corporate Governance refers to 

systems and processes through 

which public entities are controlled 

and held to account. The FoodBev 

SETA is a public entity established 

in terms of Schedule 3A of the 

Public Finance Management 

Act (PFMA). FoodBev SETA is 

one of the 21 Sector Education 

and Training Authorities (SETAs) 

established by the Minister of 

Higher Education and Training 

through the amended Skills 

Development Act of 1998. The 

FoodBev SETA is governed by its 

Constitution.

2.   Portfolio Committee
The FoodBev SETA was not 

requested to appear before the 

Portfolio Committee in the 2014/15 

financial year.  

3.   Executive Authority
The Executive Authority in the 

SETA environment rests with 

the Minister of Higher Education 

and Training. It is the Minister 

that appoints members of the 

Accounting Authority. Furthermore, 

the Minister determines its 

remuneration as per the tariffs of the 

National Treasury.

4.   The Accounting   
      Authority/ Board
The role of the Accounting Authority 

(Board) is to provide strategic 

leadership for FoodBev SETA and 

ensure it fulfils its mandate and 

obligations in terms of the FoodBev 

SETA constitution and the Skills 

Development Act. Board and Sub-

Committee Structure: 

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE 
PART C

Service level agreement with DHET 

MINISTER 

Public Finance 
Management Act 

Public Audit 
Act

Finance & Remuneration Committee

Governance & Strategy Committee

Skills Development 
Act 

Skills Development 
Levies Act 

Performance
 agreement 

QCTO Act 

FoodBev 
SETA  

BOARD 

Chief 
Executive 
Officer

Baking, Cereals, 
Confectionery & 
Snacks Chamber  

Processed  & 
Preserved  Meat, 

Fish, Fruit 
& Vegetable 

Chamber  

Dairy Chamber  Beverage 
Chamber  

Manufacture of 
Food Preparation 

Products Chamber 

EXCO 

Audit and Risk Committee
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LIST OF ABBREVIATIONSACCOUNTING AUTHORITY 
REPORT 

a) FoodBev SETA Sector          
    Overview

Companies operating within this 

sector are clustered  

in line with their industrial activities 

and are grouped  

according to the following five sub-

sectors (Chambers): 

Baking, Cereals, 
Confectionary & Snacks 
(BCCS) 

This sub-sector includes the 

manufacture of breakfast foods, 

bakery products, cocoa, chocolate, 

sugar-confectionary and nuts. It 

is comprised mainly of companies 

involved in salting, baking, drying 

and cooking processes. 

Beverage Manufacturing  

This sub-sector manufactures 

spirits, beer, malt, soft drinks and 

mineral water, with wine and beer 

being major products. 

Dairy Manufacturing  

All dairy products are 

manufactured by companies in this 

sub-sector including fresh milk, 

cheese, butter, ice-cream, yoghurt 

and edible ice.

Manufacture of Food 
Processing  

This is the largest sub-sector and 

it produces goods that are used 

in making a meal or beverage. 

Examples of these products 

include noodles, spices and 

sauces.

Processed and Preserved 
Meat, Fish, Fruit and 
Vegetables. 

This sub-sector is split into 
the following: 
•	 Manufacture of prepared and 

preserved meat, canned, 

processed and dehydrated 

fruit and vegetables, vegetable 

and animal oils and fats, 

processed fish, crustacean 

and similar foods;

•	 Production, processing and 

preserving of meat and meat 

products;

•	 Slaughtering, dressing and 

packing of livestock, including 

poultry and small game for 

meat, lard and other edible 

fats; and

•	 Processing and preserving 

of fish and fish products, fruit 

and vegetables.  

b)  Organisational Effectiveness

Board and Board Sub 
Committees

During the 2013/14 financial 
year, FoodBev SETA Board 
comprised of:
•	 6 constituent nominees who 

represent the interests of 

business; 

•	 6 constituent nominees who 

represent the interests of 

labour; 

•	 2 ministerial appointees; and 

•	 1 independent chairperson. 

The Board committees, comprising 

of the Executive Committee, 

Audit Committee, Finance 

and Remuneration Committee 

and Governance and Strategy 

Committee met on a regular basis 

and provided recommendations to 

the Board during the course of the 

year.
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5.2 Executive Committee Meeting Attendance – 2014/15  
Number of Meetings held: Scheduled = 3 and Special = 1

Elizabeth Manoto
Gerhardus Hamman
Geoff Penny
Keith Smith
Lancelot Giba
Jan Matsobane Komape
Raymond Mnguni
Tienie Ehlers

1
2
3
0
4
4
3
1

0
1
1
1
1
1
1
0

Organised Labour 
Organised Employer 
Organised Employer 
Organised Employer 
Organised Labour 
Independent
Organised Labour 
Organised Employer

Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Chairperson
Member
Member

26 May 2014 (out)
26 May 2014 (in)
26 May 2014 (in)
26 May 2014 (out)
1 April 2011
1 April 2011
26 May 2014 (in)
26 May 2014 (out)

Committee Member Name No. of 
scheduled 
meetings 
attended 

Constituency 
Represented

Designation Date Reshuffled 
and appointed 
from/to another 
Committee  

No. of  
special 
meetings 
attended

Committee Member Name No. of 
scheduled 
meetings 
attended 

Constituency 
Represented

Designation Date Reshuffled 
and appointed 
from/to another 
Committee  

No. of  
special 
meetings 
attended

5.3 Finance and Remuneration Committee Meeting Attendance – 2014/15 
Number of Meetings held: Scheduled = 4 and Special = 1

Andile Nkosibomvu
Dick Khumalo
Gerhardus Hamman
Leslie Thomas
 Raymond Mnguni 
Shahrzad Hone
Tienie Ehlers

1
2
1
2
3
3
2

 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1

Organised Labour
Organised Labour 
Organised Employer 
Organised Employer
Organised Labour 
Independent
Organised Employer 

Member
Member
Member
Chairperson
Chairperson
Member
Member

26 May 2014 (out)
26 May 2014 (in)
26 May 2014 (out)
26 May 2014 (in)
14 September 2015
1 April 2011
6 May 2013

Committee Member Name No. of 
scheduled 
meetings 
attended 

Constituency 
Represented

Designation Date Reshuffled 
and appointed 
from/to another 
Committee  

No. of  
special 
meetings 
attended

5.1 The FoodBev SETA Board and Committee Meeting Attendance  

Number of meetings held:  Scheduled = 4 and Special = 9

Andile Nkosibomvu
Dick Khumalo
Elizabeth Manoto
Geoff Penny
Gerhardus Hamman
Jan Matsobane Komape
Keith Smith
Lancelot Giba
Leslie Thomas
Raymond Mnguni
Shahrzad Hone 
Thulani Tshabalala
Tienie Ehlers
Willie Prinsloo

4
4
4
3
3
4
4
4
3
4
4
4
4
4

9
8
7
7
7
9
7
9
8
8
8
8
5
9

Organised Labour 
Organised Labour 
Organised Labour 
Organised Employer 
Organised Employer
Independent
Organised Employer 
Organised Labour 
Organised Employer 
Organised Labour 
Independent
Independent
Organised Employer 
Organised Employer 

Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Chairperson
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

1 April 2011
1 April 2011
1 April 2011
24 April 2014
1 April 2011
1 April 2011
6 May 2013
1 April 2011
24 April 2014
14 September 2012
1 April 2011
1 April 2011
6 May 2013
1 April 2011
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No

1

2

3

4

5

Meeting Fees per 

meeting per day

R4,608

R3,584

R3,912

R3,912

R3,584

Board Fees(calculated at 8% of the 

full time remuneration p.a)

 R92,813

R72,161

-

-

-

Committee

Chairperson of the Board 

Board Member 

Chairperson of other Subcommittees

Chairperson of other Audit and Risk Committees

Audit and Risk Committee Members 

Rate Per 

Hour 

R576

R448

R489

R489

R448

FEES TO BOARD MEMBERS AND SUBCOMMITTEES WERE MADE AS FOLLOWS:

Committee Member Name No. of 
scheduled 
meetings 
attended 

Constituency 
Represented

Designation Date Reshuffled 
and appointed 
from/to another 
Committee  

No. of  
special 
meetings 
attended

Committee Member Name No. of 
scheduled 
meetings 
attended 

Constituency 
Represented

Designation Date Reshuffled 
and appointed 
from/to another 
Committee  

No. of  
special 
meetings 
attended

5.4 Governance and Strategy Meeting Attendance – 2014/15  

5.5 Audit and Risk Committee Meeting Attendance – 2014/15  

Number of meetings held:  Scheduled = 4 and Special = 0

Number of meetings held:  Scheduled = 3 and Special = 1

Andile Nkosibomvu
Dick Khumalo
Elizabeth Manoto
Keith Smith
Lancelot Giba
Thulani Tshabalala
Willie Prinsloo

Andile Nkosibomvu
Janice Meissner
Leslie Thomas
Moshupi Mokgobinyane
Sibusiso Majola
Thandi Sihlaba
Willie Prinsloo

4
4
4
2
4
4
4

3
3
2
0
2
3
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1
1
0
0
1
1
1

Organised Labour 
Organised Labour 
Organised Labour 
Organised Employer
Organised Labour 
Independent
Organised Employer

Board Member
Independent Member
Board Member 
Independent Member
Independent Member
Independent Member
Board Member

Member
Member
Member
Member
Chairperson
Chairperson
Member

Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Chairperson
Member

26 May  2014 (in)
26 May  2014 (out)
26 May 2014 (in)
26 May 2014 (in)
26 May 2014 (out)
1 April 2011
1 April 2011

1 April 2011
1 July 2011
31 July 2014 (in)
20 October 2014 (Resigned)
1 July 2011 
1 July 2011
26 May 2014 (out)

Refer to note 27 of the Annual Financial Statement for detailed remuneration of board members.

5.6  Remuneration of Board Members
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7. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEES

8. COMPLIANCE TO LAWS AND REGULATIONS

9. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

10.  MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

FoodBev SETA is accountable for 

the process of risk management 

and the system of internal control, 

which is regularly reviewed for 

effectiveness and for establishing 

appropriate risk and control 

policies which are communicated 

throughout the FoodBev SETA;

The implementation of internal 

controls is ultimately the responsibility 

of the Board however this is 

FoodBev SETA strives to comply 

with all legislations and regulations 

governing public entities.  

These include among others:

FoodBev SETA has a Fraud 

Prevention Policy, which will 

be reviewed annually to ensure 

FoodBev SETA employees 

annually complete a declaration 

	» There is an ongoing process 

for identifying, evaluating and 

managing the significant risks 

faced by the FoodBev SETA; 

	» An adequate system of 

internal controls is in place to 

mitigate the significant risks 

faced by FoodBev SETA to an 

delegated to the Chief Executive 

Officer who exercises an oversight 

role. Audit and Risk Committee 

•	 The Constitution

•	 Skills Development Act as 

amended

•	 Skills Development Levies Act  

as amended

relevance and compliance with 

current trends and regulations.  

An anonymous fraud hotline 

of interest form declaring any 

potential conflict of interest.  This 

acceptable level. The system 

is designed to manage rather 

than eliminate the risk and 

maximize the opportunities to 

achieve business objectives. 

This system can provide 

reasonable, but not absolute, 

assurance.

exercises the oversight role on 

internal controls. CEO should ensure 

that controls are put in place.

•	 Public Finance Management Act 

•	 Treasury Regulations

•	 National Skills Development 

Strategy.

(whistleblowing) is available to all  

staff and external stakeholders.

is approved by the Chief Executive 

Officer.  

6. RISK MANAGEMENT
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The Code provides a guideline 

as to what is expected from 

employees in performing their daily 

tasks, in their relationships with 

other similar organisations and 

the public, as well as providing a 

common ethical basis for individual 

conduct. All employees of the 

FoodBev SETA has adopted an 

Occupational Health and Safety 

(OHS) Policy in which management 

and employees recognise and 

accept its legislative responsibilities 

and, is committed to establishing 

and maintaining an environment 

in which employees continuously 

improve safety and health 

practises. 

FoodBev SETA are subject to this 

Code of Conduct and are required 

to comply with both the letter and 

spirit of the Code. 

Employees of the SETA are 

committed to conducting 

themselves in accordance with 

The organisation is committed to 

ensuring that the requirements of the 

Occupational Health and Safety Act 

No. 85 of 1993 and Regulations are 

fully met. The following structures 

have been established in terms of the 

OHS Policy:

•	 Health and Safety Officer 

•	 Health & Safety Representative 

•	 Health and Safety Committee

the highest standards of integrity and 

ethics and in compliance with relevant 

legislation related to objectivity, 

independence and an avoidance of 

any conflicts of interest. Compliance 

with the Code is expected to enhance 

professionalism and help to ensure 

service confidence in the sector.

FoodBev SETA has adopted an HIV/

AIDS policy intended to promote 

awareness among employees and 

prevent discrimination of those 

infected and/or affected by HIV/AIDS.

Due consideration is given to the 

environment in all decision making.

11.  CODE OF CONDUCT 

12.  HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
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AUDIT AND RISK 
COMMITTEE REPORT

Audit and Risk Committee 
Responsibility

The Audit and Risk Committee 

reports that it has complied 

with its responsibilities arising 

from Section 77 (1) (a) (ii) of the 

Public Finance Management Act 

(PFMA) and National Treasury 

Regulations 3.1. The Audit and 

Risk Committee also reports that 

it has adopted appropriate formal 

terms of reference as its Audit 

and Risk Committee Charter 

accordance with the requirements 

of Section 77 of the Public Finance 

Management Act, No. 1 of 1999 

(“PFMA”) and Treasury Regulations 

27.1.7 and 27.1.10 (b) and (c); has 

regulated its affairs in compliance 

with this charter and has 

discharged all its responsibilities as 

contained therein.

The Effectiveness of Internal 
Control

The Food & Beverages 

Manufacturing Sector Education & 

Training Authority (FoodBev SETA) 

has a system of internal control to 

provide cost-effective assurance 

that the FoodBev SETA’s goals 

will be economically, effectively 

and efficiently achieved. In line 

with the PFMA, the International 

Standards for the Professional 

Practice of Internal Auditing 

issued by the Institute of Internal 

Auditors and the King III Report on 

Corporate Governance, Internal 

Audit provided the Audit and Risk 

Committee and Management with 

quarterly internal audit reports in 

terms of its approved annual and 

three-year rolling Internal Audit 

Plan.

From our review of the various 

reports of Internal Audit, the Audit 

Report on the Annual Financial 

Statements and the Management 

Report of the Auditor-General of 

South Africa (AGSA), it was noted 

that there were no material internal 

control inadequacies in the system 

of internal control for the period 

under review. 

From our review of the 
reports of the Internal 
Auditors:

•	 The internal controls are 

adequate but certain 

significant improvements are 

required; and

•	 The Internal Auditors are 

operating objectively and 

independently. 

Corrective actions have been 

agreed by Management and are 

being monitored by the Audit and 

Risk Committee.

Internal Audit

In line with the PFMA and the 

King III Report on Corporate 

Governance requirements, Internal 

Audit provides the Audit and Risk 

Committee and Management with 

reasonable assurance that the 

internal controls are adequate and 

effective. This is achieved by a risk-

based internal audit plan, Internal 

Audit assessing the adequacy of 

controls mitigating the risks and 

the Audit and Risk Committee 

monitoring implementation of 

corrective actions.  

The Audit and Risk Committee 

reviewed the internal audit quarterly 

reports to ensure that internal 

audit activities were conducted in 

terms of the approved annual plan. 

The Committee is satisfied of the 

achievement of the revised annual 

audit plan by internal audit. 

Quality of Management 
Reports

During the period under review, 

quarterly management reports 

were presented to the Audit 

and Risk Committee during its 

meetings. The Audit and Risk 

Committee is concerned with the 

content and quality of quarterly 

management and quarterly 

performance reports issued during 

the year under review in terms of 

the PFMA and National Treasury 

Regulations. 

Risk Management

The FoodBev SETA established a 

process for the management and 

monitoring of risk management. 

The FoodBev SETA has 

implemented the use of a fraud 

hotline during the year under 

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2015.
The Committee should meet at least 4 times per annum as per its approved terms of reference. 
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review; however, the end-to-end 

risk management process requires 

improvement. The Audit and Risk 

Committee has reviewed the 

strategic risk register. The Audit 

and Risk Committee is provided 

with the quarterly progress reports 

from risk management.

Internal Audit has provided 

the Audit and Risk Committee 

assurance on the effectiveness of 

the risk management system and 

the Committee is satisfied that 

the risk assessment process is in 

place. 

Predetermined Objectives

We have reviewed and discussed 

with the AGSA the audited annual 

performance information to be 

included in the annual report. 

External Audit

We have on a quarterly basis 

reviewed the FoodBev SETA’s 

implementation plan for audit 

issues raised in the prior year. 

The Audit and Risk Committee 

has met with the AGSA to ensure 

that there are no unresolved 

issues that emanated from the 

regulatory audit. Corrective actions 

on the detailed findings raised 

by the AGSA will continue to be 

monitored by the Audit and Risk 

Committee on a quarterly basis.

Evaluation of Annual 
Financial Statements

We have fulfilled our mandate 

with regards to the Annual 

Financial Statements as 

mentioned below.

The Audit and Risk Committee 
has:
•	 reviewed and discussed the 

unaudited Annual Financial 

Statements to be included in 

the Annual Report, with the 

AGSA and the Accounting 

Authority;

•	 reviewed the AGSA’s Interim 

Management Report and 

Management’s response 

thereto;

•	 reviewed changes to 

accounting policies and 

practices as reported in the 

unaudited Annual Financial 

Statements;

•	 reviewed the SETA’s 

processes for compliance 

with legal and regulatory 

provisions;

•	 reviewed the information on 

predetermined objectives 

to be included in the Annual 

Report; 

•	 reviewed the quality and 

timeliness of financial 

information availed to the 

Audit and Risk Committee for 

oversight purposes; and

•	 reviewed material adjustments 

resulting from the audit of the 

FoodBev SETA.

The Audit and Risk Committee 

concurs and accepts the AGSA’s 

opinion regarding the Annual 

Financial Statements and proposes 

that the audited Annual Financial 

Statements be accepted and read 

together with the report of the 

AGSA. 

Appreciation

The Audit and Risk Committee 

wishes to express its appreciation 

to the Management of the 

FoodBev SETA, the AGSA and 

the Internal Audit Unit for the 

efforts done to improve the internal 

control environment.

T Sihlaba
Chairperson of the Audit and 
Risk Committee
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1.   Human Resource 
Strategies and Staff Planning 

This includes the following focus 
areas: 
•	 Assessment of human 

resources required to achieve 
the key deliverables as outlined 
in the SETA Strategic Plan;

•	 SETA structural reviews and 
Human Resource Requirements 
as and when determined 
necessary;

•	 As required by law, conducts 
an audit of the composition 
of the SETA and the staff 
according to race, gender, 
disability, occupational 

category and organisational 
component;

•	 In line with Employment Equity 
Act, sets realistic goals and 
measurable targets to ensure 
equitable representation of 
suitably qualified persons 
from designated groups in all 
occupational categories and 
at all levels; and

•	 Develops, implements and 
reviews the Employment 
Equity Plan for the SETA.

1.2  Recruitment and Selection 

As at 31 March 2014, the SETA 
staff complement was at 40. Posts 

that were vacant as per approved 

structure were advertised and 
filled. The Board approved the 
placement of two Interns for 
the purposes of gaining work 
experience.  

1.3  Performance Management and  
       Staff Development 

The Performance Management 
Policy was reviewed and approved 
in August 2014 and all employees 
entered into Performance 
Agreements with their managers. 
The 2014/15 final assessments 
took place in March 2015. 

% of total no. 
of staff leaving

Reason Number

1.4   Human Resources oversight statistics    

Table 1: Employment changes

PART D

Death         0              0%
Resignation        6             15%
Dismissal         1               2%
Retirement        0               0%
Ill Health         0               0%
Expiry of contract        0               0%
Other         0               0%
Total         7              17%

Nature of disciplinary action Number

Table 2: Labour Relations-  Misconduct and Disciplinary actions

Verbal warning     2
Written warning     1
Final Written warning    1
Dismissal      1

HUMAN RESOURCES 
REPORT
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Occupational Categories M  F  D  M  F  D  M  F  D  M  F  D  M  F  D  M  F  D 

1    1    0   0   0    0   0    0   0    0   0   0    0   0   0     1   1   0       2 

3    1   1    0   0    0   0    0   0   0    0   0    0   0   0     3    1   1       4

2   4    0    0   0    0   0    0   0   0    1   0    0   0   0     2    5   0       7

1   4    0   0    0    0   0    0   0    1   0   0    0   1   0     2    4   0       6

6   1    0   0    0    0   0    0   0    0   0   0    0   1   0     5    10  1     15

0   2    0   0    0    0   0    0   0    0   0   0    0   1   0     0     2   0      2

13  13  1  0    0    0   0    0   0    1   1   0    0   3   0    13   23  2      36

African Coloured Indian White
Foreign 

Nationals
Total per 

Level
Employess
per level 
at end 31 

March 2015

Table 3: Employment Equity Profile

Executive Management 

Senior Management 

Professionals and Specialists

Skilled Workers  

Semi-skilled Workers

Unskilled Workers 

Total
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The amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R), 

which is also the functional currency of the NCT. Unless otherwise stated, financial 

figures are presented to the nearest R1000. 

The annual financial statements set out on pages 50 to 84, which have been 

prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the Accounting Authority 

on 31 July 2015.

FOOD AND BEVERAGES MANUFACTURING INDUSTRY SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY  

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015
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Introduction

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Food and Beverages Manufacturing Industry Sector Education and Training 

Authority (FoodBev SETA) as set out on pages 50 to 84, which comprise, the statement of financial position as at 31 March 

2015, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement and statement of 

comparison of budget information with actual information for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary 

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the financial statements

2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 

with the South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of 

the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and the Skills Development Act of South 

Africa, 1998 (Act No.97 of 1998) (SDA), and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines, is necessary to 

enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in 

accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements, and 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 

misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 

internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of  

the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 

statements. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the FoodBev SETA as at 

31 March 2015 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the SA Standards of 

GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA and SDA.

Emphasis of matter 

7. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT  
ON THE FOOD AND BEVERAGES MANUFACTURING INDUSTRY SECTOR 

EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY 
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SETA re-establishment

8. As disclosed in note 30 of the financial statements, the FoodBev SETA licence expires on 31 March 2016. As at the date 

of this report, the minister of Higher Education and Training had not made a pronouncement on renewal of the SETA licence 

beyond 31 March 2016.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

9. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and the general notice issued in terms 

thereof, I have a responsibility to report findings on the reported performance information against predetermined objectives 

for selected objectives presented in the annual performance report, non-compliance with legislation and internal control. The 

objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings as described under each subheading but not to gather evidence to 

express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.

Predetermined objectives           

10. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for 

the following selected objectives presented in the annual performance report of the public entity for the year ended 31 March 

2015:

• Objective 8.1: Sector skills needs researched, documented and communicated on pages 18

• Objective 8.3: Skills development support (learnerships and skills programme) on pages 18

• Objective 8.4: Skills development support (apprenticeships, internships, FET placements) on pages 19

• Objective 8.5: Skills development support skills development support (bursaries, AET and MDP) on pages 18 to 19

• Objective 8.7: Collaborative FET and HET institutions regarding the curriculum on pages 20

• Objective 8.8: FET: SETA presence on pages 20

• Objective 9.2: Facilitation of quality workplace skills plans and annual training reports on pages 24

11. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. 

12. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented in accordance 

with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance was consistent with the planned 

programmes. I further performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, 

measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s Framework for managing programme performance 

information (FMPPI).

13. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

14. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for  the following 

programmes:

• Objective 8.1: Sector skills needs researched, documented and communicated on pages 18

• Objective 8.3: Skills development support (learnerships and skills programme) on pages 18

• Objective 8.4: Skills development support (apprenticeships, internships, FET placements) on pages 19

• Objective 8.5: Skills development support skills development support (bursaries, AET and MDP) on pages 18 to 19

• Objective 8.7: Collaborative FET and HET institutions regarding the curriculum on pages 20

• Objective 8.8: FET: SETA presence on pages 20

• Objective 9.2: Facilitation of quality workplace skills plans and annual training reports on pages 24
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Additional matters

15. Although I raised no material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the 

selected objectives, I draw attention to the following matters:

Achievement of planned targets

16. Refer to the annual performance report on page 18 to 20 for information on the achievement of the planned targets for the 

year. 

Adjustment of material misstatements

17. I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing on the reported performance 

information for objective 8.1: Sector skills needs researched, documented and communicated; objective 8.2: Career guidance 

facilitated  and distributed; objective 8.3: Skills development support (learnerships and skills programme); objective 8.4: 

Skills development support (apprenticeships, internships, FET placements);  objective 8.5: Skills development support skills 

development support (bursaries, AET and MDP) and objective 8.7: Collaboration with FET and HET institutions regarding the 

curriculum. As management subsequently corrected all of the misstatements, I did not raise material findings on the usefulness 

and reliability of the reported performance information.

Compliance with legislation

18. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the public entity had complied with applicable legislation regarding financial 

matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material non-compliance with specific matters in key 

legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows: 

Annual financial statements

19. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting 

framework as required by section 55(1)(a) of the PFMA. Material misstatements of financial instruments, related party and 

commitments disclosure notes identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statements were subsequently corrected, 

resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.

Internal control

20. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance report and compliance with 

legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the findings on 

non-compliance with legislation included in this report. 

Leadership

21. Action plans for implementation of the audit recommendations were not monitored. This resulted in material misstatements 

identified by the auditors.

Financial and performance management

22. Monthly processing and reconciling of balances relating to the statement of financial position and commitments did not 

always take place throughout the year.
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23. Management did not implement controls over project management to ensure that all valid discretionary 

grant commitments are accurately accounted for in the annual financial statements. This has resulted in material 

misstatements in commitments identified by the auditors.

24. Management did not adequately review the annual financial statements resulting in misstatements identified by the 

auditors in the financial instruments disclosure, related party and commitments notes.

Pretoria

31 July 2015
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Figures in Rand thousand               Note(s) 2015       2014

Revenue

Non‑Exchange Revenue 

Skills Development Levy: Income         4 277,345    249,706

Penalties and Interest            5     7,053        2,641

Other income             3        208          ‑

Total revenue from non‑exchange transactions      284,606    252,347

Exchange Revenue 

Interest received - investment           6   23,104      13,130

Other income             7     1,982        1,143

Total revenue from exchange transactions        25,086        14,273

Total revenue           309,692    266,620

Expenditure 

Employer grant and project expenses           8          (142,211)    (139,138)

Uncommitted funds, government grants and other donor funding: expenditure  9 (76,335)     (25,087)

Administration expenses                      10 (30,237)     (24,683)

Total expenditure                    (248,783)    (188,908)

Surplus for the year              60,909      77,712
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

Figures in Rand thousand               Note(s) 2015       2014

Assets

Current Assets 

Prepayments and advances                             13   2,440        3,517

Trade and other receivables from non-exchange transactions              14    -           118

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions              15      371           788

Inventory                               16       38             72

Cash and cash equivalents                                17           411,584    354,092

                     414,433    358,587 

Non‑Current Assets 

Property, plant and equipment                 11  1,005        1,136 

Intangible assets                   12                  427               220

            1,432        1,356

Total Assets                    415,865        359,943

Liabilities

 

Current Liabilities 

Trade and other payables from non-exchange transactions              18  6,581         5,683

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions                             19             37,350       45,351

Provisions                    21  4,308         2,040

National Skills Fund received in advance                 20      -                   151

                       48,239       53,225

Total Liabilities                      48,239       53,225

Net Assets                    367,626     306,718

Reserves

 

Administration reserve          1,432         2,161

Discretionary grant reserve                    366,194     304,557

Total Net Assets                     367,626     306,718
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Figures in Rand thousand Administration 

reserve

Discretionary 

grant reserve

Employer grant 

reserve

Accumulated 

surplus

Total net 

assets

Balance at 01 April 2013      1,112  227,831      63     ‑              229,006 

Changes in net assets 

Surplus for the year         -       -      -   77,712  77,712 

Allocation of unappropriated surplus    7,792      56,333  13,587  (77,712)      - 

Excess reserves transferred to  

Discretionary reserve    (6,743)  20,393  (13,650)      -      - 

Balance at 01 April 2014      2,161  304,557        ‑      ‑              306,718 

Changes in net assets

Surplus for the year         -       -       -               60,908  60,908 

Allocation of unappropriated surplus    6,151  41,518  13,239              (60,908)      - 

Excess reserves transferred to  

Discretionary reserve   (6,880)  20,119  (13,239)     -     - 

Balance at 31 March 2015    1,432              366,194                   ‑     ‑              367,626
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Figures in Rand thousand               Note(s) 2015       2014

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from stakeholders 

Levies, interest and penalties received                  286,217    257,995

Interest income          23,104      13,130

Other cash receipts from stakeholders         1,982          1,143

                      311,303    272,268

Cash paid to stakeholders, suppliers and employees  

Grants and project payments                  (141,725)     (180,354)

Uncommited funds, government grants and other donor funding: expenditure              (76,335)     (25,087) 

Compensation of employees                   (16,117)     (12,911)

Payments to suppliers and other                   (18,977)       28,921

                     (253,154)     (189,431)

Net cash flows from operating activities                 22 58,149      82,837

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment                 11    (292)          (443)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and investment properties       11       ‑              13

Purchase of other intangible assets                  12    (365)            (33)

Net cash flows from investing activities          (657)          (463)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents      57,492       82,374

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year                 354,092     271,718

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year                17           411,584     354,092
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

Figures in Rand 

thousand

Adjustments Final Budget Actual 

amounts on 

comparable 

basis

Difference 

between 

final budget 

and actual

ReferenceApproved 

budget

Statement of Financial 

Performance

Revenue 

Other income        -  -  -         1,982       1,982    32.1

Fines and Penalties       -  -  -         7,053    7,053    32.2

Transfers received                248,000  -      248,000     277,345      29,345    32.3

Interest received - investment  10,000  -        10,000       23,104  13,104                 32.4

Other income - non-exchange     -  -  -            208       208                 32.5

Total revenue               258,000  ‑      258,000     309,692 51,692 

Expenses 

Administration expenses  (31,000)  -      (31,000)     (30,237)     763  32.6

Government grants and other  

donor funding: expenditure        -  -  -     (76,335) (76,335)  32.7

Employer grant and project  

expenses              (227,000)  -    (227,000)   (142,211)  84,789  32.8

Total expenditure             (258,000)  ‑    (258,000)   (248,783)    9,217 

Surplus for the year     ‑  ‑  ‑       60,909  60,909
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the effective Standards of Generally Recognised

Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards

Board. The implementation of the new GRAP standards has not resulted in any change in accounting policy.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual

financial statements, are disclosed below.

1.1 Basis of preparation
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except where adjusted for fair values as

required by the respective accounting standards.

1.2 Functional and Presentation Currency
These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rands which is FoodBev SETA’s functional currency.

Furthermore all figures presented are rounded off to the nearest thousand.

1.3 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the enterprise and these benefits can

be measured reliably. This occurs when Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) either makes an allocation or 

payment of levies, whichever comes first.

1.4 Levy income
In terms of section 3(1) and 3(4) of the Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 (Act No. 9 of 1999), registered member

companies of the FoodBev SETA pay a skills development levy of 1% of the total payroll cost to the South African Revenue 

Services (SARS).

Eighty percent (80%) of skills development levies are paid over to the FoodBev SETA (net of the 20% contribution to the

National Skills Fund).

Skills Development Levy (SDL) transfers are recognized when it is probable that future economic benefit will flow to the SETA 

and these benefits can be measured reliably. This occurs when the DHET either makes an allocation or payment, whichever 

occurs first, to the SETA, as required by Section 8 of the Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 (Act No.9 of 1999). The SDL 

transfer is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable or received.

Revenue is adjusted for inter FoodBev SETA transfers due to employers changing SETA’s. Such adjustments are separately

disclosed as InterSETA transfers. The amount of the inter SETA adjustment is calculated according to the Standard

Operating Procedure issued by DHET.

When a new employer is transferred to the FoodBev SETA, the levies transferred by the former SETA are recognised as revenue 

and allocated to the respective category to maintain its original identity. Employers who have annual payrolls below R500k are 

exempted from further payment of skills development levies. In cases where payments have been made by these employers, an 

accrual is made for the refund of the levies should an employer request a refund.

1.5 Interest and penalties
Interest and penalties on the skills development levy is recognised when it accrues based on the amount received or allocation 

made by DHET.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.6 Government Grants and other donor funding
Funds transferred by the Government and other donor funding are accounted for in the financial statements of the

FoodBev SETA as a liability until the related eligible expenses are incurred, when the liability is extinguished and revenue

recognised.

An unconditional grant is recognised in surplus or deficit as other income when the grant becomes receivable.

Other government grants are recognised initially as deferred income at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that

they will be received and the entity will comply with the conditions associated with the grant.

As FoodBev SETA satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange 

transaction recognised as an asset, it shall reduce the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognise an amount of 

revenue equal to that reduction.

1.7 Investment income
Investment income comprises of interest income on funds invested and is accrued using the effective interest method.

Interest from investments is recognised when the bank has credited the investment with interest due in line with the maturity date 

of the investment.

1.8 Grants and project expenditure
Mandatory grants

The grant payable and the related expenditure are recognised when the employer has submitted an application for a grant in 

the prescribed form within the agreed upon time-frame and before the cut-off date and the application has been approved 

as the payment then becomes probable. The grant is equivalent to 20% of the total levies paid by the employer during the 

corresponding financial period.

Discretionary grants & Project Expenditure

A SETA may out of any surplus funds determine and allocate discretionary grants to employers, education and training

providers and employers who have submitted an application for a discretionary grant in the prescribed form within the agreed 

upon time-frame and before the cut-off date. The grant payable and the related expenditure are recognised when the application 

has been approved, training has taken place and conditions have been met.

Project expenditure comprise:

•	 costs that relate directly to the specific contract; 

•	 costs that are attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the project; and

•	 such other costs as are specifically chargeable to the FoodBev SETA under the terms of the contract.

Such costs are allocated using methods that are systematic and rational and are applied consistently to all costs having

similar characteristics.

Discretionary Grants and project costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. A receivable is 

recognised at the fair value of consideration received or receivable for incentive and other payments made to the extent of 

expenses not yet incurred in terms of the contract.

Provisions for grants 

Grant payments

A provision is recognised for grant payments once the specific criteria set out in the regulations to the Skills Development
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Act, (Act no.97 of 1998) has been complied with by member companies and it is probable that the FoodBev SETA will make the 

relevant payments. The measurement of the obligation is based on the levies received.

Projects
No provision is made for projects approved at year-end, unless the service in terms of the contract has been delivered or the 

contract is of an onerous nature. Where a contract has been approved, but has not been accrued for or provided for, it is 

disclosed as commitments in the notes to the financial statements.

1.9 Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance with, a requirement of any applicable 

legislation, including:

•	 The PFMA,

•	 The Skills Development Act,

•	 The Materiality and Significance Framework approved by the FoodBev SETA Council 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care 

been exercised.

All irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised against the respective class of expense and disclosed in a note 

in the financial statements when it has been identified.

1.10 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Purchased software that 

is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment. When parts of an item of property, 

plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant 

and equipment.

Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is 

probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the SETA and its cost can be measured reliably. 

The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment 

are recognised in surplus or deficit as incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised in surplus or deficit on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of 

property, plant and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful life, unless it is 

reasonably certain that the SETA will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Item     Useful life

Office furniture and fittings   8-11 years

Office equipment    7-11 years

Computer equipment   5-9 years
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The depreciation method, useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually

and altered if circumstances or expectations have changed significantly. The depreciation charge is recognised in the

surplus or deficit of the organisation.

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the 

carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognised in surplus or deficit.

1.11 Intangible assets

Amortisation
Amortisation is recognised in surplus or deficit on a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of intangible

assets from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful life for the current and comparative periods is

as follows:

Item   Useful life

Computer software 5-12 years

The amortisation method and useful lives of items of intangible assets is reviewed annually and altered if circumstances

or expectations have changed significantly.

Gains and losses on disposal of intangible assets are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the

carrying amount of intangible assets and are recognised in surplus or deficit.

1.12 Leasing

Finance leases ‑ lessee
Leases in terms of which the SETA assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance

leases.

Assets held under finance leases and the corresponding liability are initially recognised at their present value of the

minimum lease payments at the date of acquisition. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the Statement

of Financial Position as a finance lease obligation. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in

accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset. Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are

apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. Finance costs, which represent

the difference between the total leasing commitments and the estimated present value of the assets acquired, are

charged to the income statement over the term of the relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest

on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

Operating leases ‑ lessee
Leases of assets under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as

operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance on a

straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total expense,

over the term of the lease. When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment

required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which the termination

takes place.
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1.13 Impairment

Impairment of Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the SETA’s non-financial assets, other than inventory, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 

whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects 

current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment 

testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are 

largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable 

amount. Impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units 

are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit on a pro rata basis. 

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has 

decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate used to determine 

the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed 

the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 

recognised.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A 

financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on 

the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying 

amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. Individually 

significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed 

collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. All impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was 

recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost, the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.

1.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the FoodBev SETA has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event 

and it is probable that this will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be estimated reliably. Provisions are measured 

at managements best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date and are discounted to 

present value where the effect of time value of money is material.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events or present

obligations where the transfer of economic benefits is uncertain or cannot be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are not 

recognised but disclosed, unless they are remote.
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1.15 Employee benefits

Medical Benefits
The FoodBev SETA provides medical benefits as part of the cost to company package given to its employees. Payments are 

charged as a salary expense as they fall due.

Provident Fund Benefits
The FoodBev SETA provides for a Provident Fund for all its employees through a defined contribution plan. Payments to the fund 

are charged as part of salary expense as they fall due.

1.16 Financial instruments

Financial assets
The FoodBev SETA’s principal financial assets are account receivables, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Impairment losses are recognised 

in an allowance account where the carrying value exceeds the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted using the 

original effective interest rate, less any impairment losses.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash balances, call deposits and petty cash.

Financial liabilities
The FoodBev SETA’s principal financial liabilities are accounts and other payables.

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, comprising original debts less principle payments and amortisations.

Fair value considerations
The fair values at which financial instruments are carried at the reporting date have been determined using available market values. 

Where market values are not available, fair values have been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at prevailing interest 

rates. The fair values have been estimated using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies, but are not 

necessarily indicative of the amounts that the FoodBev SETA could realise in the normal course of business. The carrying amounts 

of financial assets and financial liabilities with a maturity of less than one year are based on cost as fair value due to the short-term 

trading cycle of these items.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset if there is any intention to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously and a 

legally enforceable right to set off exists.

1.17 Net Assets 

Net Assets is sub-classified in the Statement of Financial Position between the following reserves:

•	  Administration reserve

•	  Employer grant reserve

•	  Discretionary grant reserve 
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This sub-classification is based on the restrictions placed on the distribution of funds received in accordance with the

Regulations issued in terms of the Skills Development Act, 1998 (Act No. 97 of 1998).

Member employer company levy payments are set aside in terms of the Skills Development Act and the regulations

issued in terms of the Act, for the purpose of:

In addition, contributions received from public service employers in the national or provincial spheres of government may be used to 
pay for the SETA’s administration costs.

Interest and penalties received from SARS as well as interest received on investments are utilised for discretionary grants and projects.

The surplus/deficit is allocated to the administration reserve, the mandatory grant reserve and the discretionary fund
reserve.

The transfer between reserves is as per the stipulation in the Skills Development Act which requires surplus fund from administration 
reserves and any unclaimed mandatory grants to be transferred to the discretionary grant reserve and is done on the accrual basis 
of accounting.

1.18 Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a first-in-first-out basis.

1.19 Related party transactions

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African
Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only entities 
within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties.

Key management is defined as individuals with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of 
the SETA. We regard all individuals from the level of executive management up to the Council as key management per the definition 
of IPSAS 20.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be 
influenced by management in their dealings with the entity.

1.20 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

1.21 Commitments

Commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of financial 
performance but are included in the disclosure notes to the financial statements.

2015  2014

Administration costs of the SETA  10.50%  10.50% 

Employer Grant Fund Levy   20.00%  20.00% 

Discretionary grants and projects  49.50%  49.50% 

     80.00%  80.00% 
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Administration 

reserve

Administration

2015

2. Allocation of surplus for the year to reserves

Mandatory 

skills 

planning 

grant

Employer 

grants 

reserve

Discretionary 

grants
Special projects 

Govt. Grants

Total 

discretionary

Discretionary reserveTotal per 

Statement   

of Financial 

Performance

Skills development levy: 

income 

Admin levy income (10.5%)  36,388          36,388            ‑           ‑         ‑      ‑ 

Grant levy income (69.5%)              240,957  ‑         70,093     170,864            ‑                170,864 

Skills development levy:  

penalties and interest     7,053  ‑             ‑          7,053        ‑      7,053 

Other Income ‑ non‑exchange       207               ‑             ‑             207        ‑                       207 

investment income   23,104  ‑             ‑        23,104        ‑    23,104 

Other income      1,982  ‑             ‑          1,982        ‑      1,982 

Total revenue                309,691           36,388         70,093     203,210        ‑  203,210 

Administration expenses  (30,237)         (30,237)             ‑           ‑         ‑      ‑ 

National Skills fund  

income/infrastructure support (76,335)  ‑             ‑      (76,335)        ‑               (76,335) 

Employer grants and  

project expenses               (142,211)  ‑        (56,854)     (85,357)       ‑               (85,357) 

Total expenses               (248,783)          (30,237)        (56,854)   (161,692)       ‑             (161,692) 

Net surplus per Statement  60,908             6,151         13,239      41,518        ‑  41,518 

of Financial Performance  

allocated   

Figures in Rand thousand 
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Administration 

reserve

Mandatory 
skills 

planning 
grant

Discretionary 

grants
Special  

projects Govt. 

Grants

Total 

discretionary

ReferenceTotal per 

Statement   

of Financial 

Performance

Skills development levy: 

income 

Admin levy income (10.5%)  32,475          32,475            ‑           ‑         ‑      ‑ 

Grant levy income (69.5%)              217,231  ‑         80,702     136,529            ‑                136,529 

Skills development levy:  

penalties and interest     2,641  ‑             ‑          2,641        ‑       2,641 

Investment income   13,130  ‑             ‑        13,130        ‑    13,130 

Other income      1,143  ‑             ‑          1,143        ‑      1,143 

Total revenue               266,620           32,475        80,702     153,443        ‑  153,443 

Administration expenses              (24,683)           (24,683)             ‑           ‑         ‑      ‑ 

National Skills fund  

income/infrastructure support        (25,087)  ‑             ‑      (25,087)        ‑               (25,087) 

Employer grants and  

project expenses             (139,138)  ‑       (67,115)     (72,023)        ‑  (72,023) 

Total expenses             (188,908)          (24,683)       (67,115)     (97,110)       ‑               (97,110) 

Net surplus per Statement  77,712             7,792         13,587       56,333        ‑   56,333 

of Financial Performance  

allocated   

2014 Employer 
grants 
reserve

Figures in Rand thousand 
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4. Skills development levy income
 The total levy income transfer per the Statement of Financial Performance is as follows:

5. Interest and Penalties
 The total levy income transfer per the Statement of Financial Performance is as follows:

6. Investment income
 Interest revenue

7. Other income
 Other income comprises:

Penalties are levied by SARS on Employers at a rate of 10% of the amount due, who pay their Skills Development Levy 

after the due date as legislated. Interest accrues at the prescribed rate of 10.5% per annum.

Levy income: Administration 

Levies received             36,383  32,460 

InterSETA transfers in                   46                      15 

InterSETA transfers out                 (41)                     ‑ 

Total Levy income: Administration                         36,388 32,475 

Levy income transfer: Employer Grants 

Levies received             70,077  80,640 

InterSETA transfers in                 221                      62 

InterSETA transfers out                             (204)       ‑ 

Total Levy income transfer: Employer Grants          70,094  80,702 

Levy income transfer: Discretionary Grants 

Levies received          170,846            136,488 

InterSETA transfers in                  99        41 

InterSETA transfers out                (82)      ‑ 

Total Levy income transfer: Discretionary Grants      170,863            136,529 

           277,345            249,706

Interest              2,369     930 

Penalties             4,683  1,712 

              7,052  2,642

Bank           23,104            13,130

Other                 703      38 

Grant Recovery from employers           1,279  1,105

              1,982  1,143

Other income            208            ‑

3. Other income ‑ non‑exchange

Figures in Rand thousand             Note(s) 2015         2014

          2015         2014
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8. Employer grant and project expenses 

 8.1 Project expenditure consists of:

9.  Government Grants and other donor funding: expenditure

Mandatory grants 

Disbursed             55,956  106,215 

Movement in provisions and accruals                898 (39,100) 

Discretionary grants 

Expensed              79,661   69,261 

Project expenditure               8.1

Expensed                5,696      3,157

             142,211  139,533

Direct salaries and wages              4,435         2,186 

Direct Project Administration expenses: 

SSP Research                  ‑                      7

Scarce Skills Guide                  151          86 

Advertising, Promotions & Publicity material                 48                    19

Catering & Event Hosting                ‑           48 

Consulting Fees                 ‑             6 

External Moderation                 769         589 

Travel & Accomodation                 293                      215 

Other administration expenses                ‑                    1 

                5,696      3,157 

TVET ‑ Infastructure development                ‑    25,087 

Uncommitted Discretionary Funds ‑ Transfered to NSF        76,335        ‑ 

              76,335    25,087

Figures in Rand thousand       Note(s)  2015         2014
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10. Administration expenses

Amortisation             157  341 

Advertising             391  374 

Assessment rates & municipal charges          166  186 

Bank charges               45    59 

Catering and refreshments              58  127 

Cleaning                98    53 

Communication             483  508 

Conferences and seminars              44  220 

Consumables               88               173 

Consultancy and service provider fees          131            1,239 

Cost of employment                    13,490          10,466 

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment          79   20 

Debt impairment             676  258 

Depreciation             343  386 

Electricity             176  200 

Entertainment             ‑      1 

Auditor’s remuneration 

 External audit fees                     1,986            1,683 

  Internal Audit Fees           712               706 

Insurance               84    97 

Legal fees             632    58 

Magazines, books and periodicals           ‑      4 

Marketing             841    15 

Maintenance, repairs and running costs 

   Property and buildings           123    87 

Operating lease rentals 

   Premises                      1,725            1,726 

  Equipment             288  274 

*QCTO              709  395 

IT expenses                       3,238            1,239 

Interest paid                 3                 35 

Recruitment costs            ‑  273 

Printing and stationery            118    62 

Other expenses             ‑    42 

Postage and courier             193    58 

Board remuneration                      1,958            1,966 

Audit committee remuneration             75    83 

License fees               35      1 

Security                 282  263 

Travel ‑ local             678  797 

Training              133  208   

                      30,238           24,683

*Prior year amounts were restated due to the reclassification of the QCTO expenses.

Figures in Rand thousand           Note(s)   2015               2014
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Cost of employment

 

Salaries and wages 

   Basic salaries                      15,863          11,163 

Social contributions 

 Medical aid contributions             454  291 

   Pension contributions: defined contribution plans                    1,608            1,199

                        17,925          12,653 

Allocation of cost of employment 

Administrative expenses                      13,490          10,466 

Project expenses                         4,435            2,187

                        17,925          12,653 

Average number of employees               40    40 

Cost /  

Valuation

Office furniture and fittings        914            (677)        237   874         (673)     201 

Office equipment         896            (526)        370             1,262         (844)     418 

Computer equipment     1,481         (1,083)        398             1,603      (1,086)     517 

Total       3,291         (2,286)     1,005             3,739     (2,603)  1,136

Office furniture and fittings     201      149     (18)          (95)     237 

Office equipment      418        99  (59)          (88)      370 

Computer equipment     517        44    (2)        (161)     398

                 1,136      292  (79)        (344)  1,005

Office furniture and fittings     251          4    -           (54) 201 

Office equipment      480        16    -           (78) 418 

Computer equipment     381      423  (33)         (254) 517

                 1,112      443  (33)         (386)         1,136

Opening 
 balance

Opening 
 balance

Additions

Additions

Disposals

Disposals

Depreciation

Depreciation

Total

Total

Cost /  

Valuation

Carrying 

value

Carrying 

value

Accumulated 

depreciation 

and  

accumulated 

impairment

Accumulated 

depreciation 

and  

accumulated 

impairment

2015 2014

11. Property, plant and equipment

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment ‑ 2015

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment ‑ 2014

Figures in Rand thousand         Notes    2015               2014

10. Administration expenses (continued)
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Cost /  

Valuation

Computer software     1,993          (1,566)       427              2,361       (2,141)      220 

Computer software             220               365         (157)    428

Computer software             528                33         (341)    220

Discretionary grants prepaid                2,431   3,508 

Deposits                          9         9 

Closing balance                  2,440   3,517 

InterSETA Debtors

Administration grant levy debtors                    ‑           15 

Employer grant levy debtors                    ‑     74 

Discretionary grant levy debtors                    ‑     29 

                       ‑                118 

Other receivables from employers        15.1          371    622

Payments in advance                    ‑     166 

                    371    788

There are intangible assets in the current financial year which are fully depreciated however are still being used by the SETA.

Opening 
balance

Opening 
balance

Additions

Additions

Amortisation

Amortisation

Total

Total

Cost /  

Valuation

Carrying 

value

Carrying 

value

Accumulated 

depreciation 

and  

accumulated 

impairment

Accumulated 

amortisation 

and   

accumulated 

impairment

2015 2014

12. Intangible assets

Reconciliation of intangible assets ‑ 2015

Reconciliation of intangible assets ‑ 2014

13. Prepayments and advances

14. Trade and other receivables from non‑exchange transactions

15. Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions

There are assets in the current financial year which are fully depreciated however are still being used by the SETA.

There are assets approved for disposal due to the fact that these assets have reached the end of their usefull life and no 

further economic benfits are expected (book value zero).

Figures in Rand thousand 

Figures in Rand thousand                 Notes      2015                 2014
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Grant recovery from employers                 834   4,613 

Less Debtors allowance                (468) (3,994) 

Net Grant recoverable from employers                366      619 

Sundry Debtors                       5          4 

                    371      623

Consumable stores                    38       72

Skills development grants payable ‑ mandatory              6,581 5,683 

Cash on hand                      ‑          3 

Bank balances                34,567 66,889 

Cash at bank and in hand               34,567 67,412 

Short‑term deposits             377,017          287,200 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year           411,584          354,092

Levies incorrectly received from SMEs

Opening balance                  2,040   3,028 

Utilised                                   ‑                (2,275) 

Additions                     750   1,287 

Closing balance                  2,790   2,040

Opening balance                    151     151 

Written off                  (151)       ‑ 

Closing balance                     ‑       151

Accrued expenses              37,350 45,083 

Service provider fees outstanding                    ‑       268 

                 37,350 45,351

As required by Treasury Regulation 3.1.2, National Treasury approved the banks where the bank accounts  
are held. The weighted average interest rate on short term bank deposits was 6.00% (2014:3.37%).  
Included in the above balance is an amount of R0K (2014:505k) that is reserved for NSF approved projects.

An amount of R444k is held as security by First National Bank, for the bank guarantee of R444k in favour  
of Growthpoint Properties for the lease agreement deposit.

The amount of R2,790 (2014:R2,040) relates to levies incorrectly contributed by employers, and 
paid over to SARS and DHET, after being exempted from contributing skills development levies.

15.1 Other receivables from Employers

16. Inventory

18. Trade and other payables from non‑exchange transactions

17. Cash and cash equivalents

21. Provisions

20. Government grants & Donor funding: Special Projects

19. Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

Figures in Rand thousand               Notes(s)      2015                 2014
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21. Provisions (continued)

Levies incorrectly received from SMEs      2,040          750   2,790 

Bonus provision            ‑       1,518    1,518 

          2,040       2,268    4,308

Levies incorrectly received from SMEs        3,028              1,287        (2,275)   2,040 

Bonus provision              238    ‑           (238)       ‑ 

            3,266             1,287        (2,513)   2,040 

Levies incorrectly received from SMEs                          2,790   2,040 

Bonus provision                                1,518       ‑ 

                    4,308   2,040

Net (Deficit)/Surplus as per Statement of Financial Performance          60,908 77,712 

Adjusted for non‑cash items: 

Depreciation                      343      386 

Amortisation                      157      341 

Loss on sale of assets                       79        20 

Movements in provisions                  2,268           (1,226) 

Changes in working capital: 

Decrease/(Increase) in inventory                      34      (34) 

Decrease/(Increase) in receivables ‑ exchange transactions                 417   1,547 

Decrease/(Increase) in receivables ‑ non exchange transactions                118      142 

Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments                1,077   3,959 

(Decrease)/Increase in payables ‑ non exchange transactions            (7,999)           39,585 

(Decrease)/Increase in payables ‑ exchange transactions                 898         (39,595) 

(Decrease)/Increase in income received in advance                (151)     ‑ 

                  58,149 82,837 

Opening 
 balance

AdditionsOpening 
 balance

Additions

Utilised 
during the 

year

Total

Total

Reconciliation of provisions ‑ 2015

Reconciliation of provisions ‑ 2014

22. Reconciliation of net cash flow from operating activities to net surplus

Bonus provision

Opening balance                      ‑      238 

Utilised                       ‑    (238) 

Additions                1,518      ‑ 

                 1,518      ‑

Figures in Rand thousand                 Notes(s)      2015                 2014
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There is a possible litigation against  FoodBev SETA relating to a dispute with training providers who allege that FoodBev SETA 
owes them for providing services to SMMEs to the value of R 1.1m. The FoodBev SETA’s lawyers and management consider the 
likelihood of the action against the SETA being successful as unlikely, and the case should be resolved within the next  year.

A travel agency is claiming that FoodBev SETA owes them for services provided to the SETA in previous years. The travel agency 
is however unable to provide FoodBev with proof that the services were requested by SETA. The amount being claimed is R 21k.

There is an unfair dismissal case at the CCMA by one of FoodBev SETA’s ex-employees.

An employer is claiming that FoodBev SETA owes them mandatory grants dating back to 2010 and 2011 scheme years. The 
amount being claimed is R 2m and is still under investigation.

In terms of the PFMA, all surplus funds as at year end must be paid over to the National Treasury should an application for 
retention of funds be denied. The SETA will on the 31 May 2015 submit an application to the Department of Higher Education and 
Training for the retention of surplus funds. As in the previous year FoodBev SETA expects that the application to retain the surplus 
funds will be approved. 

In terms of the grant regulations, a SETA must commit or pay 95% of discretionary funds available, failure to which the 
uncommitted funds will be paid to the National Skills Fund. The calculated uncommitted funds amount to R46.9m. 

24. Commitments

Employer Grant Reserve
As at the date of the annual financial statements, no applications have been received for the payment of mandatory grants  
for those companies joining the sector post September 2014. 

Discretionary Grant Reserve

Of the balance of R365.6m available in the Discretionary Grant Reserve at the end of March 2014, R190.7m is committed for 

various projects listed below:

23. Contingent Liabilities

Opening 
Balance 

Approved 
by 

Accounting 
Authority  

& 
Contracted

Utilised Utilised Total Contracted 
at year end

Opening 
balance

2015

Approved 
by 

Accounting 
Authority  

& 
Contracted

Description of Grant

Scarce Skills Guide            28 ‑      ‑            28    ‑         ‑    28         ‑

SMME Support               713          4,950 3,453       2,210            1,000       809             2,401     1,103 

Research and Innovation  

bursaries               139          3,250 1,057        2,332    ‑               36              2,296                  ‑ 

ABET          9,433             800     982        9,251           1,658              641           10,268    2,712 

Learnerships       116,084       95,315      40,116    171,283        105,739   41,620          235,402 157,779 

Non Levy paying  

companies support  

(NGO’s & CBO’s)  

and Trade Unions            295          2,000 1,076       1,219            2,659         ‑            3,878    2,659 

TVET               ‑  ‑     ‑           ‑            36,480     15,144         21,336  22,215 

SETA Offices and GCRA             -                -     -           -              2,216          -             2,216    2,216 

TOTAL       126,692     106,315       46,684    186,323        149,752     58,250       277,825       188,684

Figures in Rand thousand 
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Notice No. 35940 of 2012 of the Grant Regulations defines a commitment as a contractual obligation that will obligate the 
SETA to make a payment or agreement (written) with specific terms between the SETA and a third party whereby the third 
party undertakes to perform something in relation to a discretionary project for which a SETA will be obliged to make a 
payment against the discretionary grant. FoodBev SETA had no written agreements between itself and employers. GRAP 
19 indicates that an item is classified as a commitment when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will 
normally result in the outflow of cash. The above amounts are all grants awarded by the organisation to employers. 

At the end of each financial year FoodBev SETA’s discretionary expenditure  and commitments (through actual contractual 
obligations) had exceeded the funds available for discretionary grants. These will be funded by the levies received in the 
future. 

Total of future minimum rental payments under non‑cancellable rental           2015   2014

The rental relates to the office building leased from Growthpoint properties was entered into on 01 November 2010 for a five year 

period ending on 31 October 2015. The lease payments escalated at 9% per annum on 01 November of each year.

Not later than one year                1,188   1,938 

Later than one year and not later than five years                  -    1,188 

                  1,188   3,126

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure                  86         86

Late payment of invoices

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure relating to previous year               56         21 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure relating to current year                 3         35 

Written off                    (3)        ‑ 

                     56        56 

Payments made without services rendered

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure relating to previous year               30         11 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure relating to current year                ‑        19 

                     30          30 

Irregular expenditure

Supply chain management process not followed 

Reconciliation of irregular expenditure 

Opening balance                61,379 57,172 

Irregular expenditure - identified in the current year relating to prior years         11,388   4,697 

Less: Amounts condoned                     ‑     (490) 

Irregular Expenditure               72,767 61,379 

 

25. Operating lease asset (accrual)

26. Material losses through irregular and, fruitless and wasteful expenditure

24. Commitments (conitnued)

Figures in Rand thousand                 Notes(s)      2015                 2014
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2015

2014

F2010/11 R ‘000

Description

Description

Action taken

Action taken

Identified in the current year 

relating to previous year

Expenditure incurred in 

trangression of the PFMA  

Act and SCM processes

Disciplinary action was taken 

against the responsible 

employees

Disciplinary action was taken 

against the responsible 

employees

11,388         ‑     11,388 

11,388         ‑     11,388

4,697        (490)     4,207 

4,697        (490)     4,207

Expenditure 

incurred

Expenditure 

incurred

Amount 

condoned

Amount 

condoned

Amount 

remaining

Amount 

remaining

Expenditure incurred in the current year

1. Due to the Soccer World Cup taking place at the time of the due date of the WSP and consequently 

the national transport and communications infrastructure being assessed to be overtaxed during 

the time, combined with the focus of resources in the food and beverages manufacturing towards 

maximising production, the Board approved a blanket extension of the due date by one month to 

31 July 2010.

The Skills Development Grant Regulation requires an extention be granted on a case by case basis. 

However, in this instance, a blanket extension was seen as appropriate due to the extraordinary 

circumstances. The decision resulted in payments of R46.6m for mandatory grants, made to those 

companies who had submitted WSPs after 30 June 2010, being classified as irregular expenditure.

2. Two contracts totalling R600k had been awarded to independent contractors (R300k each) for 

the execution of the ABET project. Although the proper procurement procedures were followed 

and the CEO and the Chairman of the Tender Committee approved the bid, the reasons for the 

deviation from competitive bidding were not properly documented as required by the TR16A6.4.

46,600

600

Figures in Rand thousand 
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F2011/12

F2012/13

F2012/13

F2013/14

F2014/15

R ‘000

R ‘000

R ‘000

R ‘000

R ‘000

3. A contract with Ricoh for the supply of photocopy machines and printers expired during the 

year. The Board took a decision to review all contracts and the contract was rolled over after it 

expired.

4. An amount of R241k was paid to VOX Orion, for the use of premicells that minimises the cost of 

telepone calls to cell phones. This contract was rolled over after it had expired.

5. There were instances where 3 quotes were not obtained for various reasons. A detailed schedule 

of these expenses has been prepared and the Board is to consider the schedule for condonation.

6. Expenditure incurred in transgression of SCM processes and procedures

7. Expired contracts extended without following SCM processes

6. Expenditure incurred in transgression of SCM processes and procedures

7. Expired contracts extended without following SCM processes

8. Expenditure incurred in transgression of SCM processes and procedures

9. Expenditure incurred in transgression of SCM processes and procedures

257

4,620

3,901

4,620

3,901

4,697

11,388

241

953

M Mathye (CEO)        1,124            295         ‑                  ‑         180                 1,599 

N Selamolela (CFO)          927            302       40               104         157                 1,530 

         2,051            597       40               104         337                 3,129

M Mathye (CEO)         599             80        ‑               26          87                  792 

N Selamolela (CFO)        840           302      83  83        147               1,455 

       1,439           382      83             109        234               2,247

Travel 
Allowance

Travel 
Allowance

Basic 

Basic 

Acting 
Allowance

Acting 
Allowance

Annual 
Bonus

Annual 
Bonus

Provident 
Fund

Provident 
Fund

Total

Total

Executive

2015

2014

27. Members’ emoluments

Figures in Rand thousand 
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J Komape (Chairperson)     93  209  12  314 

A Nkosibomvu      72    81  10  163 

D Khumalo      72    53  11  136 

E Manoto      72    61  28  161 

G Penny       54    55    3  112 

G Hamman      72    56    5  133 

K Smith       72    60  26  158 

L Giba       72    63    2  137 

R Mnguni      72    82  13  167 

S Hone       72    67  30  169 

L Thomas       54    58    3  115 

T Tshabalala      72    57    4  133 

T Ehlers       72    40    2  114 

W Prinsloo      72    60    2  134 

                   993             1,002              151            2,146

J Komape (Chairperson)       88             253  341 

A Nkosibomvu        68  58  126 

M Mashele        68              114  182 

D Khumalo        68  55  123 

E Manoto        68  64  132 

G Hamman        51  55  106 

K Smith         51  51  102 

L Giba         68  52  120 

L Tsotetsi        51              112  163 

R Mnguni        51  59  110 

S Hone         68  73  141 

T Tshabalala        68  41  109 

T Ehlers         51  41    92 

W Prinsloo        68  48  116 

                     887           1,076            1,963 

Meeting 
fees

Meeting 
fees

Board 
fees

Board 
fees

Travel Reim‑
bursement

Total

Total

Non‑executive

Reconciliation of provisions ‑ 2014

2015

2014

Figures in Rand thousand 
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FoodBev SETA operations are exposed to interest rate, credit, liquidity and market risk. The FoodBev SETA has developed a 

comprehensive risk strategy in terms of TR 28.1 in order to monitor and control these risks. The risk management process relating 

to each of these risks is discussed under the headings below.

28. Financial instruments

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk

Amount

Floating rate Fixed rate Non‑interest bearing

Effective 
interest 

rate

Amount Amount Weighted 
average 

period until 
maturity in 

years

TotalWeighted 
average 
effective 
interest 

rate

Weighted 
average 

period for 
which the 

rate is fixed 
in years

Year ended 31 March 2015

Assets

Cash           411,584  ‑       ‑             ‑                    ‑            ‑                   ‑    411,584 

Loans and accounts receivable ‑  ‑       ‑             ‑                    ‑        2,811                   ‑        2,811 

Total financial assets         411,584  -       -             -                    -        2,811                   -    414,395 

Liabilities 

Borrowings                ‑   ‑       ‑             ‑                   ‑           ‑                  ‑         ‑ 

Loans and accounts payable               ‑   ‑       ‑             ‑    ‑     (48,239)  ‑    (48,239) 

                 ‑   ‑       ‑             ‑    ‑           ‑   ‑         ‑ 

Total financial liabilities               ‑   ‑       ‑             ‑    ‑      (48,239)  ‑    (48,239) 

Year ended 31 March 2014 

Total financial assets        354,093  ‑       ‑             ‑                    ‑         4,423 ‑    358,516 

Total financial liabilities               -                  -       -             -                    -      (53,225) -    (53,225) 

          354,093  ‑       ‑             ‑                    ‑      (48,802) ‑    305,291

Figures in Rand thousand 
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FY2015

FY2015

FY2014

FY2014

Past due 0 ‑ 30 days           105                 ‑           37                     ‑ 

Past due 31 ‑ 120 days           263             (118)            ‑                     ‑ 

More than one year           466             (350)        4,576 (3,994)

Not past due         411,584     ‑        354,093        ‑

Gross

Gross

Credit Risk

The ageing of Trade and Other Receivable from non‑exchange transactions

Fair values

The  FoodBev SETA’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, account and other receivables, and 

account and other payables. No financial instruments were carried at fair value.

No financial asset was carried at an amount in excess of its fair value and fair values could be reliably measured for all financial 

instruments.

Liquidity risk

The FoodBev SETA manages liquidity risk through proper management of working capital, capital expenditure. Adequate reserves 

and liquid resources are maintained.

Trade and other payables 
from exchange transactions

Trade and other payables 
from exchange transactions

Cash and Cash equivalents

Impairment

Impairment

Impairment

Impairment

Gross

Gross

Carrying
 amount

Carrying 
amount

6 ‑ 12 
months

6 ‑ 12 
months

1 ‑ 2 years

1 ‑ 2 years

More than  
2 years

More than  
2 years

Contractual 
Cash Flows

Contractual 
Cash Flows

6 months  
or less

6 months  
or less

      37,350     37,350  37,350  ‑  ‑             ‑

      45,351     45,351  45,351    ‑                 ‑             ‑

FY2015

FY2014

28. Financial instruments (continued)

Figures in Rand thousand        2015                  2014
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Transactions with employers of the members of Board in R’000

Transactions with other public entities

The transactions below arise due to the nature of the Board Members’ employment and the fact that the employers contribute Skills 

Development Levy to the FoodBev SETA. The transactions listed below are for the payment of mandatory and discretionary grants.

F2015 F2015 F2014 F2014

Transfers 
in

Transfers 
out

Receivables Receivables

Total

Transfers 
out

Discretionary Grant

Payables

Board Member

Payables

Levies Received

Transfers
 in

Mandatory Grant

Services SETA               ‑  ‑      ‑            ‑  14         ‑  14         ‑ 

W&R SETA             347 ‑      ‑            ‑    ‑         ‑  ‑         ‑ 

AGRISETA               15             327      ‑            ‑                   ‑         ‑                 ‑         ‑

CHIETA                ‑  ‑      ‑            ‑  72         ‑  72         ‑ 

MICT                 4  ‑      ‑            ‑                   ‑         ‑                   ‑         ‑ 

TETA                ‑  ‑      ‑            ‑  32         ‑  32         ‑

Total              366             327      ‑            ‑               118      118               118     118

Rhodes Food Group        Gerhardus Hamman        1,058           1,326              2,384               2,498 

Sea Harvest Corporation        Keith Smith            594           1,285              1,879               2,423 

Distell          Leslie Thomas         2,256           2,287              4,543             16,214 

SAB ‑ Isando                        Tienie Ehlers         9,878         10,750            20,628             38,969 

TOTAL              13,786         15,648            29,434             60,104

Eskom           ‑  98 

Telkom           139  148

           139  246

29. Related parties

Transactions with other SETA’s in R’000

InterSETA transactions and balances arise due to the movement of employers from one SETA to another. During the current year 

FoodBev SETA transferred R327k payable to other SETAs and an amount of R366k receivable from other SETAs, as listed below.

Figures in Rand thousand 
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GRAP 18: Segment Reporting      01 April 2015

GRAP 105: Transfers of functions between entities under common control 01 April 2015
 
GRAP 106: Transfers of functions between entities not under common control 01 April 2015 

GRAP 107: Mergers       01 April 2015 

GRAP 20: Related parties       01 April 2016 

IGRAP 11: Consolidation – Special purpose entities    01 April 2015 

IGRAP 12: Jointly controlled entities – Non‑monetary contributions by ventures 01 April 2015 

GRAP 6 (as revised 2010): Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 01 April 2015 

GRAP 7 (as revised 2010): Investments in Associates    01 April 2015 

GRAP 8 (as revised 2010): Interests in Joint Ventures    01 April 2015 

GRAP32: Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor    01 April 2016 

GRAP108: Statutory Receivables      01 April 2016 

IGRAP17: Service Concession Arrangements where a Grantor Controls a  01 April 2016
Significant Residual Interest in an Asset  
 
DIRECTIVE 11: Changes in measurement bases following the initial adoption  01 April 2016 
of Standards of GRAP       

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. We draw 

attention to the fact that as at 31 March 2015, the SETA’s assets exceeded its liabilities and commitments by  

R189m.

The ability of the entity to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these is 

that the minister issues a SETA license.  The minister is yet to pronounce the licensing of the SETAs beyond 31 March 2016. In 

his budget speech he indicated that he still has to approach parliament to re-licence the SETA and this will happen in 2015/16 

financial year 

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for the 

entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2015 or later periods:

Effective date:
Years beginning  

on or after

Expected  
impact

Standard/ Interpretation:

30. Going concern

31. New standards and interpretations
31.1 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The impact of the  
amendment is not material.
The impact of the  
amendment is not material.
The impact of the  
amendment is not material.

The impact of the  
amendment is not material.

The impact of the  
amendment is not material.

The impact of the  
amendment is not material.

The impact of the  
amendment is not material.
The impact of the  
amendment is not material.

The impact of the  
amendment is not material.
The impact of the  
amendment is not material.
The impact of the  
amendment is not material.
The impact of the  
amendment is not material.
The impact of the  
amendment is not material.

The impact of the  
amendment is not material.
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Material differences between budget and actual amounts

32.1 Other Income ‑ exchange transactions
FoodBev SETA does not budget for other income since these are incidental transactions. It is very difficult to project how many 

employers are going to cancel their programs.

32.2 Fines and Penalties
FoodBev SETA does not budget for fines and penalties since these are incidental transactions. it is very difficult to project how 

many employers are going to submit their returns late.

32.3 Transfers received
The variance was as a result of general salary increases and bonuses. There were also new employers who joined the SETA during 

the year.

32.4 Interest received ‑ investments
FoodBev SETA had more cash reserves than it was anticipated. As a results more interest was earned during the financial year. 

Additional funds are invested with the First National Bank and the South African Reserve Bank.

32.5 Other income ‑ non‑exchange transactions
FoodBev SETA does not budget for other income since these are incidental transactions.

32.6 Administration expenses
Administration expenses are limited to 10% of the levies received. A few initiatives did not start as planned. As a result the 

administration expenses budget was underspent.

32.7 Uncommitted funds, government grants and other donor funding: expenditure
FoodBev SETA did not budget for the uncommitted funds to be refunded to the National Skills Fund. This was due to the fact that 

this amount is only determined after the end of the financial year.

32.8 Employer grant and project expenses
FoodBev SETA acquired a new grant management system and faced challenges regarding the processing of grant payments.

32. Budget differences (continued)
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